Public %

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Please reply to:
Contact: Michael Pegado

Service: Committee Services

Direct line: 01784 444286

E-mail: m.pegado@spelthorne.gov.uk
Date: 30 January 2018

Notice of meeting

Planning Committee

Date: Wednesday, 7 February 2018

Time: Call Over Meeting - 6.45 pm

The Call Over meeting will deal with administrative matters for the Planning Committee
meeting. Please see guidance note on reverse

Committee meeting — Immediately upon the conclusion of the Call Over Meeting

Place:  Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames

To the members of the Planning Committee

Councillors:

R.A. Smith-Ainsley (Chairman) J.R. Boughtflower M.P.C. Francis
H.A. Thomson (Vice-Chairman) S.J. Burkmar N. Islam

C.B. Barnard R. Chandler A.T. Jones

R.O. Barratt S.M. Doran D. Patel

|.J. Beardsmore Q.R. Edgington R.W. Sider BEM

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB

www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499



http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk

Call Over Meeting

Guidance Note

The Council will organise a meeting immediately prior to the Planning Committee meeting
(a “Call Over”) which will deal with the following administrative matters for the Committee:

Ward councillor speaking

Public speakers

Declarations of interests

Late information

Withdrawals

Changes of condition

any other procedural issues which in the opinion of the Chairman ought to be dealt
with in advance of the meeting.

The Call-Over will be organised by Officers who will be present. Unless there are
exceptional circumstances, the meeting will be held in the same room planned for the
Committee. The Chairman of the Planning Committee will preside at the Call-Over. The
Call-Over will take place in public and Officers will advise the public of the proceedings at
the meeting. Public speaking at the Call-Over either in answer to the Chairman’s
questions or otherwise will be at the sole discretion of the Chairman and his ruling on all
administrative matters for the Committee will be final.

Councillors should not seek to discuss the merits of a planning application or any other
material aspect of an application during the Call-Over.

Planning Committee meeting

Start times of agenda items

It is impossible to predict the start and finish time of any particular item on the agenda. It
may happen on occasion that the Chairman will use his discretion to re-arrange the
running order of the agenda, depending on the level of public interest on an item or the
amount of public speaking that may need to take place. This may mean that someone
arranging to arrive later in order to only hear an item towards the middle or the end of the
agenda, may miss that item altogether because it has been "brought forward" by the
Chairman, or because the preceding items have been dealt with more speedily than
anticipated. Therefore, if you are anxious to make certain that you hear any particular item
being debated by the Planning Committee, it is recommended that you arrange to attend
from the start of the meeting.

Background Papers
For the purposes of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the following
documents are to be regarded as standard background papers in relation to all items:

e Letters of representation from third parties

e Consultation replies from outside bodies

e Letters or statements from or on behalf of the applicant



AGENDA

Apologies
To receive any apologies for non-attendance.

Minutes

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018 (copy
attached).

Disclosures of Interest

To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors under the
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, or contact with applicants/objectors under
the Planning Code.

Planning Applications and other Development Control matters

To consider and determine the planning applications and other
development control matters detailed in the reports listed below.

17/01143/FUL - Staines Town Hall, Market Square, Staines-upon-
Thames

17/01144/LBC - Staines Town Hall, Market Square, Staines-upon-
Thames

17/01634/FUL - 42 High Street, Shepperton
17/01700/HOU - 27 St Hilda’s Avenue, Ashford
18/00061/DEM - White House, Kingston Road, Ashford

Planning Development Management Performance Statistics
Planning Appeals Report

To note details of the Planning appeals submitted and decisions
received between 22 December 2017 and 25 January 2018.

Urgent Iltems
To consider any items which the Chairman considers as urgent.

Page nos.

See above
report

37 - 58

59 -74

75-80

81-84
85 -86



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the Planning Committee
10 January 2018

Present:
Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley (Chairman)
Councillor H.A. Thomson (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

R.O. Barratt M.P.C. Francis D. Patel

R. Chandler N. Islam R.W. Sider BEM
S.M. Doran A.T. Jones

Apologies: Apologies were received from Councillors C.B.Barnard,
I.J. Beardsmore, J.R. Boughtflower and P.C. Edgington

In Attendance:

Councillors who are not members of the Committee, but attended the meeting
and spoke on an application in or affecting their ward, are set out below in
relation to the relevant application.

Councillor Gething was in attendance to speak on Agenda Item 4b:
Application 17/01700/HOU - 27 St. Hildas Avenue, Ashford.

118 Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2017 were approved as a
correct record.

2/18 Disclosures of Interest

a) Disclosures of interest under the Members’ Code of Conduct
Councillor R.A. Smith Ainsley declared a ‘Conflict of Interest’ on behalf of all
the Committee members in application 17/01847/PDO - Benwell House,

Green Street, Sunbury-on-Thames because it had been made by the Council.

Councillor Barratt declared a pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 4c -
17/01815/HOU - 17 Tennyson Road, Ashford.

b) Declarations of interest under the Council’s Planning Code
Councillors R.A. Smith Ainsley, H.A. Thomson, R.O. Barratt, R. Chandler, S.

Doran, M. Francis, N. Islam, D. Patel and R.W. Sider BEM reported that they
had received correspondence, in relation to application 17/01700/HOU - 27

Page 5



Planning Committee, 10 January 2018 - continued

St. Hildas Avenue, Ashford, but had maintained an impartial role, had not
expressed any views and had kept an open mind.

3/18 17/101847/PDO - Benwell House, Green Street, Sunbury-on-
Thames

Description:

This Item was an application for Prior Approval for the Change of Use from
Office (Class B1a) to 33 Residential Flats (Class C3) comprising 14 no. 1
bedroom flats and 19 no. 2 bedroom flats.

Additional Information:
The Planning Development Manager reported the following:

One late letter of representation had been received. Issues raised included:-

a) The proposal represents a new 24 hour operation.

b) Over-looking, increased noise and other distractions.

c) Traffic impact on the surrounding road network.

d) Impact on community infrastructure (schools, medical services etc.)

Paragraph 3.3 (page 15) should be amended as follows:
“The building would provide 3 33 units over three floors...."

Public Speaking:
There were no Public Speakers for this item.

Debate:
During the debate the following key issues were raised:

e |s a straight forward change of use
e Will help ease our chronic housing shortage in the borough
e Possibility of affordable housing

Decision:
The application was approved as per the recommendation in the
Officer’s report.

4/18 17/01700/HOU - 27 St. Hildas Avenue, Ashford

Description:

This application sought approval for the erection of a part single storey, part
two storey rear extension. It also involved the installation of a pitch roof to the
side of the property and the creation of a covered seating area.

Additional Information:
The Planning Development Manager reported the following:

Page 6



Planning Committee, 10 January 2018 - continued

Amended plans had been received showing changes to the roof of the single
storey side extension and also the conservatory of the neighbouring dwelling.
Consequently, condition 3 should be amended to:

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and drawings: L2506/LP rev A; 84; 02; 03; 65+rev-A
and-08 received 03.11.2017; 08 rev A received 03.01.2018 and 01 rev A and
05 rev B received 09.01.2018.

One late letter of objection had been received raising the following points:

e Page two of their original letter of objection is not displayed on the
website. (Officer note: This has now been rectified).

e The rear gardens are west facing, and not north facing as stated in the
report (Officer note: Para 7.10, 4% line on page 27 should read “west"
not “north”.

e The proposal does not comply with the SPD. (Officer note: The SPD is
dealt with in the Planning Committee report. The required 1m ‘set-in’
from the side boundary is for 2 storey side extensions, not rear
extensions).

Two letters of representation had been received on behalf of the applicant
raising the following point:

e Some photographs should be considered showing that the loss of light
will not be significant.
e Reference is made to light guidance by the London Borough of Merton

Public Speaking:
In accordance with the Council’s public speaking procedures, lan Brimage
spoke against the proposal raising the following key points:

e Loss of sunlight and daylight
e Errors in the report (Officer note: this has been corrected)
e Contrary to SPD

In accordance with the Council’s public speaking procedures, Clir Nick
Gething spoke against the proposal raising the following key points:

e Impact on neighbour
e Errors in the report (Officer note: this has been corrected)

Debate:
During the debate the following key issues were raised:

e Concern about impact on neighbour

e More information is required to assess the impact on the neighbour
e Queries over the application of the proposal against the Council’'s SPD

Page 7



Planning Committee, 10 January 2018 - continued

Decision:
The application was deferred to enable further information to be
provided to assess the impact on the neighbouring property.

5/18 17/01815/HOU - 17 Tennyson Road, Ashford

Having declared a pecuniary interest in this property, Councillor Barratt left
the room before this matter was discussed and took no part in the debate or
the vote on the application.

He indicated that he would not be returning for the remaining Agenda items.

Description:

This application sought approval for the erection of a single storey side
extension to the rear of the existing side extension (following the demolition of
an existing ‘lean to’ structure).

Additional Information:
There was none.

Public Speaking:
There were no Public Speakers for this item.

Debate:

During the debate the following key issues were raised:
¢ No change to the street scene
e Will be an improvement on the existing property

Decision:

The application was approved as per the recommendation in the
Officer’s report.

6/18 Planning Appeals Report

The Chairman informed the Committee that if any Member had any detailed
queries regarding the report on Appeals lodged and decisions received since
the last meeting, they should contact the Planning Development Manager.

Resolved that the report of the Planning Development Manager be received
and noted.

7118 Urgent Iltems

There were none.

Page 8



//
a ltem .44

/ ’ \ N
E L7 N\ \
/// / m / \\ \\
A \
\,
\,
N
N\ \\
\\ \
® N
. \
. R A
T . ] /
7,

A\

>,ISPELTH0RNE

/// MEANS BUSINESS'

~

£y

T o
LR Q?
Mk / - A“—l e T
= | VE
sy @ e
A\ N

Landing O /\

'ﬂ’/z,er -
o g

Waterside

\

17/01143/FUL and 17/01144/LBC.

N
Scale 1:1,250 A
— © Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100024284.

~/ ¢ o Page9v VR CUD//N VAR N



Planning Committee

07 February 2018

L

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Application Nos.

17/01143/FUL & 17/01144/LBC

Site Address Staines Town Hall, Market Square, Staines-upon-Thames

Proposal 17/01143/FUL
Change of use from pub/restaurant use (Use Class A3/A4) to 13
residential units comprising 2 no. studio flats, 6 no. 1-bed flats and 5 no.
2-bed flats, and associated alterations.
17/01144/LBC
Listed building consent application for internal and external alterations to
facilitiate the conversion of existing building to 13 flats.

Applicant Finer Limited

Ward Staines

Call in details N/A

Case Officer

Paul Tomson

Application Dates

Target: Agreed

Valid: 20/07/2017 extension of time.

Expiry: 19/10/2017

Executive
Summary

These planning and listed building consent applications seek the
conversion of the building from a pub/restaurant use to 13 no. residential
units. It is acknowledged that the proposed works will cause some harm
to the listed building, particularly the internal subdivision of the existing
main hall and Debenham Room. However, the building has been empty
for several years and is deteriorating. The applicant has marketed the
building on a number of occasions over the last few years and a long
term viable commercial/leisure use has not been secured. Historic
England has no objection to the application on heritage grounds and
advises that the local planning authority should weigh the harm of the
proposed scheme against the public benefits of the proposals. The
proposed residential conversion will bring the building back into a viable
use and ensure that it is restored and maintained. It is considered that
the benefit bringing the building back into a viable and long term use,
and the consequent restoration, outweighs the harm that the residential
conversion will cause to the listed building. The proposal also preserves
and enhances the conservation area and is acceptable on transportation
and flooding grounds. It also has an acceptable impact on the amenity of

Page 10




surrounding residential properties.

Recommended The planning and listed building consent applications are recommended
Decisions for approval.
MAIN REPORT
1. Development Plan

1.1  The following policies in the Council’'s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009
are considered relevant to this proposal:

» LO1 (Flooding)

HO1 (Providing for New Housing Development)
HO4 (Housing Size and Type)

EN1 (Design of New Development)

ENS3 (Air Quality)

EN5 (Buildings of Architectural and Historic Interest)

VvV V V V V V

ENG6 (Conservation Areas, Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens)

v

CC1 (Renewable Energy, Energy Conservation and Sustainable
Construction)

» CC2 (Sustainable Travel)
» CC3 (Parking Provision)

1.2 Itis considered that the following saved policies in the Borough Local Plan
2001 are relevant to this proposal:

» BE26 (Archaeology)

2. Relevant Planning History
92/00407/FUL Change of use of Town Hall and residential Approved
flat to arts and community centre with 19/08/1992

associated repairs and alterations and
formation of external access ramp.

92/00012/LBC Alterations to entrance area, excavation of Approved
new basement, alterations and renewal of 14/07/1992
services, general repairs and decoration to
accommodate formation of arts and community.

04/00906/FUL Conversion to Class A3 (Food and Drink) with  Approved
associated alterations. 10/12/2004

04/00913/LBC Listed Building Consent for the conversion to Approved

Page 11




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Class A3 (Food and Drink) with associated 26/04/2004

alterations.
16/01197/FUL Change of use from a pub/restaurant use Withdrawn
(Class A3/A4) to 14 residential units, 28/06/2017

Comprising 2 studio flats, 7 no. 1 bed flats
and 5 no. 2 bed flats with underground car
park and associated alterations.

16/01198/LBC Listed Building Consent for internal and Withdrawn
external alterations to facilitate conversion 28/06/2017
of existing building into 14 flats including
demolition of part of western elevation to
provide access to basement car park.

Description of Current Proposal

The application relates to Staines Town Hall, which is a Grade Il listed
building located on the southern side of Market Square in Staines town centre
and within Staines conservation area. The building has been empty for
several years and its condition is deteriorating. With the exception of a brief
period in 2014 when a restaurant was operating on the site, the building has
been empty since 2012. In 2004, planning permission and listed building
consent was granted to convert the building to a restaurant/pub use and the
building was occupied for this purpose up until 2012.

To the north of the site is Market Square with Clarence Street beyond. There
are several other listed buildings in the vicinity including the War Memoral,
Cygnet House, the 2 no. telephone kiosks located outside the Town Hall, and
the Blue Anchor. To the south of the site is the former Staines Fire Station,
which is a listed building. Also to the south is a vacant piece of land
surrounded by hoarding. The River Thames and the towpath is located further
to the south. To the east are the Memorial Gardens and the Staines
Conservative Club. To the west is the residential development of Colnbridge
Close.

The site is located within an area liable to flood (part Flood Zone 2, part Flood
Zone 3a). The site and the surrounding area is located with an Area of High
Archaeological Potential.

The proposal involves the change from pub/restaurant use (Use Class A3/A4)
to 13 residential units comprising 2 no. studio, 6 no. 1-bed and 5 no. 2-bed
flats. The scheme will involve the installation of new internal walls and floors
to enable the interior to be converted into 13 separate units. However, many
of the proposed rooms on the upper floors will have full floor to ceiling room
heights so to expose the original ceiling and its associated features. The
existing basement will be used as an ancillary gym. The bin store will also be
located in the basement. There will be very limited alterations to the external
parts of the building. The main changes involve the existing blocked windows
to be re-opened. This include the re-opening of the large arched blocked
windows on the southern riverside elevation. In addition, the existing modern

Page 12



3.5

3.5

pedestrian ramp on the western side of the building is to be removed and
alterations are to be carried out to the existing lightwell to provide more light
to the ancillary gym. There will be no car parking spaces proposed. All of the
units will be occupied as market housing.

The proposal differs from the previous application in that the number of units
has been reduced from 14 to 13. In addition, the previous conversion of the
basement to a car park and the creation of a new basement ramp and
opening on the western elevation has been removed. Consequently, there are
now no parking space proposed on the site.

Copies of the proposed plans are provided as an Appendix.

Consultations

The following table shows those bodies consulted and their response.

Consultee

Comment

County Highway Authority

No objection subject to conditions

Historic England

No objection on heritage grounds. The
harm associated with the subdivision will
need to be weighed against the public
benefit of the scheme (This is discussed in
detail below).

Conservation Officer

No objection

Environmental Health (Pollution)

No objection subject to a condition relating
to contaminated land

Sustainability Officer

No objection

Neighbourhood Services

No objection

Tree Officer

No objection

Victorian Society

Raises an objection

County Archaeologist

No objection

Crime Prevention Officer

Any comments will be reported orally at
the meeting.

Environment Agency

No objection subject to a condition

Thames Water

Any comments will be reported orally at
the meeting.

Public Consultation

68 properties were notified of the planning application. A site notice was
displayed and notice was provided in the local press. Six letters of objection
have been received, including one from the Staines Town Society and one
from SCAN (Spelthorne Committee for Access Now). Comments include: -

- Concern about disabled access, particularly as the front entrance is

accessed via steps.

Page 13




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

- Concern about the impact on the adjacent old Fire station site.

- Lack of car parking. Concern that cars parked on the adjacent land could
impede access to Colnebridge Close.

- The Town Hall (and adjacent old Fire Station and gardens behind should
be returned to public leisure use.

- The windows inserted into the rear elevation will overlook the adjacent
land. Concern about access during construction.

- An opportunity has been missed to redevelop the whole of this area
(Officer note: the surrounding land is within separate ownership).

- Concern that the gym in the basement will become a commercial
enterprise.

Planning Issues

- Principle

- Listed building

- Impact on the conservation area

- Amenity space

- Impact on neighbouring properties
- Parking

- Flooding

Planning Considerations

Principle

The site is located within the urban area and was previously used as a public
house/restaurant. It is not within a designated Employment Area. The
principle of converting the building to provide 13 flats is therefore considered
acceptable.

Need for Housing

In terms of the need for housing, it is relevant to have regard to paragraph 47
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which states:
“When considering planning applications for housing local planning
authorities should have regard to the government’s requirement that they
boost significantly the supply of housing and meet the full objectively
assessed need for market and affordable housing in their housing area so far
as is consistent with policies set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) para 47.

The government also requires housing applications to be considered in the
context of the presumption of sustainable development. Relevant policies for
the supply of housing cannot be considered up-to-date if the local planning
authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable site (para 49 of
NPPF).

The Council has embarked on a review of its Local Plan and accepts that the
housing target in its Core Strategy and Policies DPD-Feb 2009 of 166
dwellings per annum is significantly short of its latest objectively assessed
need of 552-757 dwellings per annum (Para 10.42 — Strategic Housing
Market Assessment — Runnymede and Spelthorne — Nov 2015). On the basis

Page 14



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

of its objectively assessed housing need the Council is unable to demonstrate
a five-year supply of deliverable sites.

However, the objectively assessed need figure does not represent a target as
it is based on unconstrained need. Through the Local Plan review the
Borough’s housing supply will be assessed in light of the Borough’'s
constraints which will be used to consider options for meeting need. Once
completed, the Borough’s up to date Strategic Land Availability Assessment
will identify further opportunity sites for future housing development that can
then be considered for allocation in the new Local Plan. This will also form
the basis for a revised 5-year housing land supply figure.

Para 14 of the NPPF stresses the presumption in favour of sustainable
development and that proposals which accord with a development plan
should be approved without delay. When the development plan is absent,
silent or relevant policies are out of date, permission should be granted unless
‘any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against policies in the Framework
taken as a whole or specific polices in this Framework indicate development
should be restricted.” This application must be considered having regard to
the above requirements of Para 14 of the NPPF.*

Having regard to the proposed development and taking into account the
above and adopted policy HO1 which encourages new development, it is
considered that particular weight should be given to the merits of this
development.

Listed Building

Policy EN5 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 (CS & P DPD) states
that the Council will seek to preserve its architectural and historic heritage by
requiring alterations and extension to listed buildings to respect the host
building in terms of scale, design, and use of materials, and the retention of
the structure and any features of special historic or architectural importance.
The policy also seeks to retain listed buildings in the use for which they were
designed and built normally only allowing changes of use where necessary to
achieve the restoration or preservation of a building and where the character
of the building and the amenities of the area are maintained.

There is a statutory duty of the Local Planning Authority under the Listed
Buildings Act 1990 (Section 66) when dealing with a planning application. It
states that “In considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning
authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses”.

The existing building has been empty for several years. With the exception of
a brief period in 2014 when it was used as a restaurant, the building has been
vacant since 2012. The condition of the listed building is deteriorating and
there is concern that unless a viable long term use is found the condition of
the building will continue to deteriorate. The Council’'s Conservation Officer
has made some comments on this issue: -

Page 15



7.11

7.12

7.13

“Clearly the peculiar configuration of the internal spaces are uniquely suited
to the municipal requirements of a hundred years ago, and realistically are
not suited to the variety of alternative uses attempted over many years. If the
purest conservation approach to the interior spaces are blindly persisted
with, the inevitable fate of this building will be a long term ‘building at risk’
albeit possibly wind and weather proof, but a constant negative feature on
the conservation area, and of detriment to the settings of many other listed
buildings in the immediate vicinity. Despite minimum essential maintenance,
informed opinion will confirm that in an unused state original fabric within the
building will steadily deteriorate.”

It is recognised that the proposed subdivision of the existing main rooms of
the Town Hall will cause significant harm to the interior of the listed building.
However, this needs to be balanced against the substantial benefits that the
development will bring. These include the restoration of the listed building,
bringing the building back into use and securing its long term future. The
applicant has demonstrated in a Supplementary Report dated November
2017, which provides marketing evidence over the last few years, that an
alternative use (i.e. non-residential) that avoids subdividing the interior has
not been achieved. Historic England was consulted on the applications and
following the receipt of the applicant’'s supplementary marketing report, has
raised no objection on heritage grounds. They state that there is clearly a
public benefit in bringing the building back into active use, and residential
conversion is probably the only way of achieving this in the current market.
Historic England comments further that in determining this application the
Local Planning Authority:

“should bear in mind the statutory duty of section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to the
desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which they possess”.

Furthermore, the Council’'s Conservation Officer states that:

“l strongly support this scheme and applaud the way in which many of the
internal features such as the small staircases have been retained in their
original use.”

It is considered that the substantial benefits of securing the long term future
and restoration of the building clearly outweigh the significant harm to the
interior of the building. Accordingly, the proposed subdivision to residential is
considered on balance to be acceptable.

The proposed changes to the exterior of the listed building will be minimal
(mainly the re-opening of blocked windows and removal of the modern ramp)
and are considered acceptable. It is also considered that the proposal will not
adversely affect the setting of the existing listed buildings of the 2 no.
telephone kiosks, the old fire station, and the other listed buildings in the area.

Impact on the Staines Conservation Area

Policy EN6 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 (CS & P DPD) states
that the Council will require the retention of buildings and other features that
are important to the character of the Conservation Area. It also states that the
Council will apply its policies in a more flexible way where justified to ensure

Page 16



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

the preservation and enhancement of a conservation area. It is also important
to note that the Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty under Section 72
of the Listed Buildings Act 1990 when dealing with a planning application to
give “special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of a conservation area”.

It is considered that the proposal will make a positive contribution to the
Staines Conservation Area and will preserve and enhance its character and
appearance. The alterations to the external appearance of the building are
very limited. Restoring the building and bringing it back into use will bring
more activity to Market Square. The Council’'s Conservation Officer and
Historic England have raised no objection in terms of the development’s
impact on the conservation area and is acceptable.

Amenity Space

With the exception of the use of the existing first floor balcony for Flat 12,
none of the proposed units will have private amenity space. Also, there will
not be any communal garden space provided on the site for the benefit of the
new occupiers. However, the building is located within a sustainable town
centre location and adjoins the Memorial Gardens, Market Square, and the
River Thames, which all provide high quality and substantial open spaces.
Consequently, it is not considered that the application should be refused on
the grounds that insufficient amenity space is provided specifically on the
application site.

Impact on neighbouring properties

Policy EN1 of the CS & P DPD states that proposals for new development
should demonstrate that they will achieve a satisfactory relationship to
adjoining properties avoiding significant harmful impact in terms of loss of
privacy, daylight or sunlight, or overbearing effect due to bulk and proximity or
outlook. Also of relevance is the Council’'s SPD on the Design of Residential
Extensions and New Residential Development.

The impact on neighbouring properties is considered acceptable. There will
be no extension to the existing building and it is considered that the noise and
general activity associated with the proposed residential use will be no greater
compared to the former use as a public house/ restaurant. Moreover, it is not
considered there would be an adverse overlooking effect in relation to the
existing residential properties in Colnebridge Close and other properties in the
area.

It is noted that 2 letters of objection have been received from the owner of the
vacant piece of land to the rear of the building. Issues raised relate to the
proposed re-opening of the existing blocked-up windows in the rear elevation,
the consequent overlooking, possible impact this could have on the potential
redevelopment of the adjacent land, possible boundary infringements and
access over the adjacent land during construction. Whilst the comments are
noted, it is not considered that there are sufficient grounds to justify refusal on
these grounds. The overlooking impact needs to be assessed in relation ot
the existing situation and the proposal’s impact on the adjacent piece of

Page 17



7.19

7.20

7.21

vacant land will be very limited. The issues relating to the possible
infringement of the boundary and access rights to the rear of the building are
not planning matters and cannot be taken into consideration with these
applications.

Parking Provision

Policy CC3 (Parking Provision) of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will
require appropriate provision to be made for off-street parking in development
proposals in accordance with its maximum parking standards.

On 20 September 2011 the Council’'s Cabinet agreed a ‘Position Statement’
on how Policy CC3 should now be interpreted in the light of the Government’s
recent parking policy changes. The effect of this is that the Council will give
little weight to the word ‘maximum’ in relation to residential development when
applying Policy CC3 and its residential parking standards will generally be
applied as minimum (maximum parking standards continue to be applicable in
relation to commercial development). The supporting text to the Parking
Standards stipulates a number of important exceptional situations where a
reduction in parking will only be allowed. One of these situations includes
town centre locations where the reduction in parking will be assessed against
the distance from a "public transport node", frequency of public transport,
availability of pedestrian and cycle routes, and the range and quality of
facilities supportive of residential development within reasonable walking
distance. Another exceptional situation is in Conservation Areas, where the
character or appearance of the Conservation Area would be harmed by the
impact of parked cars.

There are no car parking spaces proposed in this development. In
comparison, the Council’s Parking Standards stipulate a minimum parking
provision of 18 spaces for a scheme of this size. It is however considered that
there are sufficient grounds for justifying no car parking in this particular case.
The site is in a town centre location and is a very short walk from the shops
and services on the High Street and the Two Rivers Shopping Centre. It is
also within walking distance of Staines Railway Station, which has a fast and
frequent service. Moreover, the bus station is a short walk away. There are
several bus services in the vicinity. These include the bus routes on both
sides of the river. The County Highway Authority was consulted on the
planning application and has raised no objection to the proposed parking
provision making the following comments on this issue:

“The proposed development is within the town centre with good pedestrian
and cycle access to public transport, retail, employment, education, leisure
and National Health Service land uses. To take full advantage of the location
of the proposed development, | have recommended a condition for the
applicant to submit a Transport Statement to encourage use of non car
modes of transport between the development and retail, employment,
education, leisure and National Health Service land uses.

With regards to parking, the proposed development should include 18 car

parking spaces according to Spelthorne Borough Council (SpBC) Parking
Standards. The developer is not proposing any parking for the proposed

Page 18



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

development. According to SpBC parking standards a reduced provision of
parking spaces would be appropriate in Spelthorne town centres.

Notwithstanding SpBC parking standards, the proposal to not provide
parking would not result in a highway safety problem. The roads surrounding
the site and more particularly within 200 metres (the maximum distance
residents are prepared to park their cars from their home according to
[research]) walking distance of the site, are subject to parking controls
including double yellow, single yellow lines and parking bays with time and
return limits.”

It is also important to note that there are no external areas of land within the
application site capable of accommodating parking spaces, and any works to
the interior of the listed building to provide car parking within it is likely to be
unacceptable. Indeed, the previous planning and listed building consent
applications (withdrawn) were considered unacceptable mainly because of the
creation of the basement car park, ramp and opening in the western elevation.
It is considered that the benefits of bringing the building back into use and the
associated restoration of the listed building, would clearly outweigh the lack of
any car parking provision on the site.

Flooding

The site is mostly located within Flood Zone 2, which has between 1 in 100
and 1 in 1000 year chance of flooding. A smaller part of the site located
towards the rear is within Flood Zone 3a (between 1 in 20 year and 1 in 100
year chance of flooding).

There are no extensions or other significant alterations at ground floor level
that would affect flood risk. As most of the building is located in the relatively
low risk Flood Zone 2 , including the front part of the site where the building
will be accessed by the new residents, the impact on flooding will be
acceptable. There will be a dry means of escape in the event of a 1 in 100
year flood from the site to an area located outside the flood plain. The
Environment Agency were consulted on the planning application and have
raised no objection subject to the imposition of a condition.

Local Finance Considerations

Under S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, Local Planning Authorities
are now required to ensure that potential financial benefits of certain
development proposals are made public when a Local Planning Authority is
considering whether or not to grant planning permission for planning
applications which are being determined by the Council's Planning
Committee. A financial benefit must be recorded regardless of whether it is
material to the Local Planning Authority’s decision on a planning application,
but planning officers are required to indicate their opinion as to whether the
benefit is material to the application or not.

In consideration of S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, the proposal

is a CIL chargeable development rate of £140 per sq metre of new floorspace.
This is a material consideration in the determination of this planning

Page 19



7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

8.1

application. The proposal will also generate a New Homes Bonus and Council
Tax payments which are not material considerations in the determination of
this proposal.

Other Matters

The 2 no. proposed studio flats are slightly below the minimum size standards
stipulated in the Government’s Technical Housing Standards 2015 (shortfalls
of 4.57 sgm and 2.61 sgm). However, it is not considered that there sufficient
grounds to justify refusal on this issue. Both units will have relatively high floor
to ceiling heights (2.9m and 3.5m) making them more spacious compared to
typical new build flats. Moreover they will have a relatively high standard of
outlook. One of them (Unit 01) will have a dual outlook (front and side), whilst
the other unit (Unit 05) will have an outlook onto the Memorial Gardens. The
benefits of bringing the listed building back into use and the associated
restoration would clearly outweigh the slight shortfall in the minimum internal
size standards for these particular units.

The proposal complies with the Council’s smaller dwellings policy HOA4.
The County Archaeologist has raised no objection to the proposal

The Council's Head of Neighbourhood Services has raised no objection to the
bin store and collection arrangement.

The proposed gym to be located within the basement will be used ancillary to
the approved residential development.

The comments from SCAN and the Staines Town Society regarding disabled
access are noted but must be balanced against the need to preserve
historical features of the listed building. The Council’'s Conservation Officer
states that the issue of accessibility is not disputed but on some occasions
providing full legislation compliance is impossible without destroying the
integrity of the Heritage Asset. The legislation accepts this and instead
suggests that ‘best endeavors’ are used.

Accordingly, the planning application and listed building consent are
recommended for approval.

Recommendation

Planning application 17/01143/FUL
GRANT subject to the following conditions: -

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration
of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:- This condition is required by Section 91 of the Town and

Country Planning Act, 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 20



The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans and drawings:

THS/EX/100; /101; /102; /103; /104, /105; /200; /201; /202; /300 (x 2);
/401 received 15 July 2017.

THS/PL/100; /101 (x 2); /102; /103; /105; /200; /201; /202; /300; /301;
/302; /303; /401, /500; /501; /502; /506; /900 received 15 July 2017.

Reason:- For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper
planning

No development shall take place until:-

(@) A comprehensive desk-top study, carried out to identify and
evaluate all potential sources and impacts of land and/or groundwater
contamination relevant to the site, has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

(b) Where any such potential sources and impacts have been
identified, a site investigation has been carried out to fully characterise
the nature and extent of any land and/or groundwater contamination
and its implications. The site investigation shall not be commenced
until the extent and methodology of the site investigation have been
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

(c) A written method statement for the remediation of land and/or
groundwater contamination affecting the site shall be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
remediation. The method statement shall include an implementation
timetable and monitoring proposals, and a remediation verification
methodology.

The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved method
statement, with no deviation from the statement without the express
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:-
To protect the amenities of future residents and the environment from
the effects of potentially harmful substances.

NOTE

The requirements of the above Condition must be carried out in
accordance with current best practice. The applicant is therefore
advised to contact Spelthorne's Pollution Control team on 01784
446251 for further advice and information before any work
commences. An information sheet entitled "Land Affected By
Contamination: Guidance to Help Developers Meet Planning
Requirements” proving guidance can also be downloaded from
Spelthorne's website at www.spelthorne.gov.uk.

In accordance with policies SP6 and EN15 of the Spelthorne Borough
Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

Page 21



Prior to the first use or occupation of the development, and on
completion of the agreed contamination remediation works, a validation
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried
out shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason:- To protect the amenities of future residents and the
environment from the effects of potentially harmful substances.

Prior to the commencement of the development a Travel Statement
shall be submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority in accordance with the sustainable development aims and
objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework, and Surrey
County Council’'s “Travel Plans Good Practice Guide”. The Travel
Statement shall include details of the land uses and modes of non car
transport outlined in the Transport Statement dated July 2017. The
travel statement shall also include provision of a Travel information
Pack for the first occupants of each unit. And then the approved Travel
Statement shall be implemented on the first occupation of the
development and for each and every subsequent occupation of the
development, thereafter maintain and develop the Travel Statement to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy
Framework 2012 and policy CC2 of Spelthorne Borough Council’s Core
Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document February 2009.

No development shall commence until a Construction Transport
Management Plan, to include details of :

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

(c) storage of plant and materials

(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the
construction of the development

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy
Framework 2012 and policy CC2 of Spelthorne Borough Council’'s Core
Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document February 2009.

No new development shall be occupied until space has been laid out
within the site in accordance with the approved plans to provide secure,
lit and covered cycle parking to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority and shall thereafter be permanently maintained

Reason:- The above condition is required in recognition of Section 4
(Promoting Sustainable Transport) of the NPPF

Page 22



10.

That within 3 months of the commencement of any part of the
development permitted, or such longer period as may be approved by
the Local Planning Authority, facilities shall be provided within the
curtilage of the site for the storage of refuse and waste materials in
accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter the approved
facilities shall be maintained as approved.

Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice
the enjoyment by neighbouring occupiers of their properties and the
appearance of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of
the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan
Document 2009.

Prior to the occupation of the building hereby permitted details including
a technical specification of all proposed external lighting shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The agreed external lighting shall be implemented prior to the
occupation of the building and shall at all times accord with the
approved details.

Reason:- To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residential
properties and in the interest of the effect on the listed building.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance
with the Turner Jomas & Associates Ltd Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
and the following mitigation measures details within the FRA:

1. Finished floor level for the ground floor Ifats are set no lower than
17.14 metres above Ordnance Datum

2. The flood resilience measures will be set no lower than 17.74
metres above Ordnance Datum.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation
and subsequently in accordance with the timin/phasing arrangements
embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may
subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.

Reason:- This condition is sought in accordance with paragraph 103 of
the NPPF to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development
and future occupants.

Informatives

1.

Please note that this application is subject to the payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Full details of the charge, how it
has been calculated and what happens next are set out in the CIL
Liability Notice which will be sent separately.

If you have not already done so an Assumption of Liability notice

should be sent to the Council as soon as possible and before the
commencement of development.

Page 23



Further information on CIL and the stages which need to be followed is
available on the Council's website. www.spelthorne.go.uk/CIL.

The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be
carried from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from
uncleaned wheels or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will
seek, wherever possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing,
cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent
offenders. (Highways Act 1980

Sections 131, 148, 149).

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)

(England) Order 2015

Working in a positive/proactive manner

In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a
positive and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of paragraphs
186-187 of the NPPF. This included the following:-

a)

b)

d)

Provided pre-application advice to seek to resolve problems before the
application was submitted and to foster the delivery of sustainable
development.

Provided feedback through the validation process including information
on the website, to correct identified problems to ensure that the
application was correct and could be registered;

Have suggested/accepted/negotiated amendments to the scheme to
resolve identified problems with the proposal and to seek to foster
sustainable development.

Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the process

to advise progress, timescales or recommendation.

Listed Building Consent Application 17/01143/FUL

8.2  GRANT subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

Reason:- This condition is required by Section 18 of the Planning
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans and drawings:

Page 24



THS/EX/100; /101; /102; /103; /104; /105; /200; /201; /202; /300 (x 2);
/401 received 15 July 2017.

THS/PL/100; /101 (x 2); /102; /103; /105; /200; /201; /202; /300; /301,
1302; /1303; /401; /500; /501; /502; /506; /900 received 15 July 2017.

Reason:- For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper
planning

Page 25



NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

NG

e

9¢ abed

=
7777

Nl

>
ANNANNNNN

SN
i

o
N - —_— e | ———
M
| ﬂ:::::ﬂr
< / J] iil F'LAIIFF(.)I_RMJ:i
e
————
| LI
! Frw endow b AR

. demaniediods
rebotaled here

| |
R .
FLAT 03
1 BEDROOM
58.24m?
i -

-

GHTWELL

Windows lo be re-opened

i \
FLATO2 /| |

1 BEDROOM

50.83m*

hi

1

B

v

/)E%’/E»”///

Windows {o be re-opened

1

LA

Non accessible door-
Door to be replace and to malch wilh

wstingaccess | | T d
to b infiled <1~ ' 7
irave 1o Y
be retained e . 4 |
b y

m
~ gaptobeinfiled .
{o mistoh with wxlgtng
; | I
] G Y SIS

N

Part of the sasting floor to be reteined and refurblahed

\’I\/W_\/K/
peicer i gl A

FIRE EXIT

i

X

i ENTRANGE HALL

Exisling columns (2 2 wooden flor + lan
inad ginal wooden panels lo to ba
1o.be reia \i' be retained and g retsined and refurbis '/m
tafurblahed ‘

DH-2.05 OH-2.08 Comices to be refurbished.

be re-opened

GROUND FLOOR

= — AN el
.uii I,_'L '_ !
L =1 ) I | —a— | |
=
| FLAT 04 I
! = 1BEDROO R
' 55.00m* 7

ELECTRICCBD___ V.

Th
€
v
El

o

o | =l o = oo [0 B

UTILITY

B
Ve
8
7/
7/
7/
7/
/7
/
Ve
// O
Vi
7/ d ¢
O
€
——
o
—

This drawing is copyright

USL Architects.
- The Busworks Job No. Job Drawing No. Rewvision
] United house 16/ THS TOWN HALL STAINES PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR THS/PL/101 om 1 gm  om  10m
M North Road e Market Square —— g 40 f \ !
il N7 9DP TW18 4RH - Staines . ;
e LONDON 1210712017 England CD BK PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100




/¢ abed

NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made

by AMU Surveys Ltd

il

=

%
&

¢

- |

FLAT 07
2 BED DUP - Lower
9.30m?

NN

r

i

5
5

FLAT 06

1BED DUP - Lower

L
k. 48.24m?
520 ( —1 A I :" » el o S R A
= FLAT 08 : L5 FLAT 07 /| — AR ST il =
1 [ |
S L ¥ 1 BED DUP-Lower TuE| | 7| 2BED DUP - Lower ‘ 3 A |t
| . 3s.1zmt ft 40.41m? | } - T
y | Vg x i
= i I E
= = F 4 1 A
f'-.' ; /| . | j
. = o)
! LI-_I e e ———— {
{ i
N : — E s
FLAT 09 |
2 BED DUP-Lower = &
51.1m? 3 B
2 L}
v
i e, : r et
e vy 3 .
) — s e 8 2 €y e
-.; | ¢ i L 1 28-DUP - Lower
/ i “1 i ’ 4 39.80m*
: ¢ 3| 7 l’.Ei ELECTRIC CUPBOARD I =
4 izl e— - b |
i FLAT 10 : 7 Z Z
2 BED DUP Lower | “ 7 FLAT11 5l | S Original stirs lo 2 A
45.23m* e 114 1BED DUP-Lower =il i be refurbised ® =
7 ! L Senin ) ! - . 4
E ¢ - | (o | | e | M o 2R ’ !
v e i 1 = b ot [T
FIRE EX| el ol 1 L APV P :
4 Ll Al 3
-3 o =1 . - - v W S
/ Fo FC 063 G083 o g ¢ = /u e
" f CH C-H 388 & | [ A /I I : 1 ! : (T 2
/ -— , LEEL s e AR
- ; r 7
77 7 7 H 7 7 5 ;.’u” ;. . o 7
¢ D
This drawing is copyright
USL Architects.
The B K Job No. Job Drawing Drawing No. Revision
) e Busworks
-
It United house | 16/ THS TOWN HALL STAINES PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR THS/PL/102 om 1m 2 sm m om0
iJ North Road - Market Square == — gy <l m___tH n__°m _1tm
A N7 9DP TW18 4RH - Staines
" . .
LONDON 28/04/2017 England CcD BK PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100




g¢ obed

NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

|

=

%
>

:"}- ; /-
[ s FULL MEGH WINDOW ON Lo . A== FULL HIGH WINDOW ON
be b : cormicds o be. % Jo be !
i' "‘:’J::%g s LIVING SPACE sy .: o LWVING SPAGE wefort] :
g0 i _-m.
E OPENED VISIBLE
! | FLAT 07 £l CEILING ROSES
A ;,u (FLAT 09 . ‘ 2 BED DUP - Upper s 4
e | : 2 BED DUP-Upper 1 BED DUP-Upper g 22.38m* : 2
- ey . i :25.15m? 16.81m2 E I e i L . |
it %i: 1 BED DUP - Uppér = DOUBLE HIGH ON o
- DOUBLE HIGH ON DOUBLE HGH ON g ; T T T 20BTmEr T I f w T NesE T ;
- = T HVINGORACE o _ T lwweseace - - - B =T B et 1 e 1 |E ~ CALLCELINGFABRICTOBE — — |7
MHM / AL ceBRls HABic To BE ALCEN B R0 BE ! _’T — | DPARUE | RS AN DIAND RERURBISHED
RETAINED AND REFURBISHED RETAINED AND REFURBISHED BALCON
| “iy prasit] -
|l | l ‘ P OPENED VISIBLE
& . ¥ i = CEILING ROSES
| E= 1 g
3 i i |
g Corbeau + arch lo be i
2 § retained and refurbished - -
4 ol HIGHLEVEL GLAZING > =] b 2
g2 @l et — 7 HIGH LEVEL GLAZING
L_:ﬂ: 2 = ;g:: Q.. [ THICHLEVEL
3 il m
H sgd | | = : @
/,"/' g§ gel | § o ___ OPENED VISIBLE
2 —g £ DOUBLE HIGH ON = 2 | “ 1 34 CEILING ROSES
71 pT Wesas 8 0 27 | , ig 8
& Eﬂ&m&m&g | | ALL CE[!.INEC!-;EFABRIC TO 1 |
z 5 ! | GLAZING | : ! i
§§ Vi k= i“ ] / — RETAINED AND t i _DOUBLEMIGHON_ _ — __
- - . REFURBISHED ] v || 0 o OPENED VISHLE
5% [ i = / COLOUR'TO BE i g LM SRACE. - CEILING FABRIC
] i ; . f , I
& l C__J It e L) J g encrose
2 i ’ F / FLAT 12 4 OPAQUE ) \
¥ o >~ | I 2 BED DUP - Upper GLAZED
2 ; = S . 39.25m? SRCORRIDOR
i i 1 - | | t . "Corbeau + arch to be
1 tff = e t2e Sl = retained and i N 0
| " DOUBLE HIGHON EI ‘i STORAGE UNDER CEILING FABRIC
_____,! | g5l gde . ||. xI:IVING $ACEG 53 § BSL 26 51 3 |1 it i : e ———
g % Z i o B AL CEDNGFABRICTO BE £ DOUBLE H)GH ON g“ ST 'GALUNTRADE T0) BE RETAWED
/ 2| RETAINED AND REFURBISHED ] -~ - LIVING $PACE S
< & I : ALL CEILING FABRIC TO BE ; [ i L o e
R “ ~ with O
Jl 4 o} | FLAT 10 RETAINED AND REFURBISHED | FLAT 41 ] | achirol te “‘ql‘ 220 |
i g 3 g 2 BED DUP t;lpper ] ' | 1 BED DUP-Upper 8- e st
;- j[ , N 19.61m 1 1&22""' x Lisled slai_rs ? E '
FIRE EXIT. & | ~ i 2 ¢ J il OPENED VISIBLE
B i . g & ; T y CEILING ROSES
5 ) ¢ i tob fnices (o be c0 - ! <
8 o cormiohs to be of o e e ) M
7 D R R e L o T " 3
: = 2 7 L
7 / 7 il A G %
‘{. carn
@ |
A s Lo
{\ r‘) ')
This drawing is copyright
USL Architects.
2 The Busworks Job No. Job Drawing Drawing No, Revision
-t :
'. United house 16/ THS TOWN HALL STAINES PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR THS/PL/103 5 i om B0 7 em & om
1m 2m 3m m m m m m m
Ml North Road — Market Square — m o . , p_ 9 ! [ , 1 !
i LglngE S SSReS CD | BK PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100
0] 28/04/2017 England




62 abed

NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

3
e

< 4
| | :
O J s 1Ll
‘ 2
. |
7/ Uy D | U E
\ ’ ’ g
O { . CLOCKTO BE REFURBISHED
O ‘é AND PUT INTO WORKING ORDER . s '
@ i é - ¥
8% %
il il M M
= ‘ - | oo |
SURVEY 3|
i
_ N - X
] ] _ 7 /é blo B A — o 3
(] ] - Eaa - %
_l ®
This drawing is copyright
USL Architects.
= orks Job No. Job Drawing_ Drawing No Revision
€ busw \

I United house 16/ THS TOWN HALL STAINES PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR THS/PL/101 2lom m  2m sm  om  1om
‘ ;g North Road — Market Square e ); : L, 2t ! Y
N7 9DP TW18 4RH - Staines N\ : :

. LSO ST CD | BK \ PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100

England




NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

new full high windows /
{rame lo
malch with exisling

‘-" F====5 New F -
1 Il PLATFORM |1
I LIFT II

|

[
Q-EE-EE-J

LIGHTWELL

new full high windows /
frame to
malch wilh exisling

Fire exit

g~ 203

Exisling fire door lo
be replaced by glazed and match
wilh ihe building

|
/4 11004 [ |
o 7 2 A»
Vs i / 1 . | S
/ BIN STORAGE = | I
7 » 19.65m? s
g ; |
BS.
O\ /’D Existing columns - |
EXISTING COLUMS TO BE R ! g ___ I
RETAINED £ _ I
1 ar |
= 1 11—- H
]
ANCILLARY GYM FOR
. RESIDENT USE ONLY
g 7 RS ——
@ AREA : 214.01m? —
@ &
W L
o : \ | -
3 |
> o oo [» n |o | | |0 B |
|
- Q\ / |
EXISTING COLUMS TO BE |
RETAINED
CHANGING ROOM |
Z 38.16m? |
¥ . |
T |
>
£C 124 n
C-H 0.76 =)
7 ’/ 7 7 7 Z :/ %
" Windows Lo be re-opaned T Windows fo b re-opened = - SSEA et ] e | S T e e g P e ®
This drawing is copyright
USL Architects.
Drawi Drawing No. Revision
' e e v TOWN HALL STAINES ==
ﬁ United house 16/ THS PROPOSED BASEMENT THS/PL/100 om 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m  8m  Om  10m
‘1‘1 North Road = Market Square = = A : . . : : [ i : .
g N7 9DP TW18 4RH - Staines . .
. 9 LONDON 28/06/2017 England CD | BK PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100




T¢ abed

+11 05

+3 13

+782 ——

3RS

+4 76 T
+3 80

17701143

17/011hk

NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

£ e ot AR NG 1IERT

2017

(g 15

s R\
10RO Vo
JUNWAY

~NE |

7
i G AT, -
o NO ACCESS 2 7
e UNABLE TO 7 27
7 ' . - SURVEY . . / 7
e i iz s
7 , Z L % Z Z Z 7 Z 7 Z %
7 /
7 7
7 / NO ACCESS
; FLAT 13 UNABLE TO
SURVEY
- . -
Z
f 7 —— +10.84 Ceiling
=
, ¥ \f \f  § +3.69
" Are=ed 5 SN 5 f 8 —~
s sty | A - - - . - 7 7
. URRES (EVEL | ! —
’:;) :leSQ\:‘\ ‘JD : i . | vy 5 . d
BESPOKE 'uezb)’u. o
T T ’ == Ax
AL . 3 s 2T =5 - : g N
! = Ratm o < RATIO O S
il UPPER LEVEL UPPER LEVEL )
9 077 LA e : -
—_———— Full high window = Ful high window - +6.95
S——— - « 5
s  NEWFLOGR. 8 +2 84
- o
. . o
i T 8
FIRE EXIT FLAT 11 z
- LOWERLEVEL — = g
= 3 | = FLAT 10 8 FLAT 09
[ £ £ | LOWER LEVEL LOWERLEVEL |
- = - - o i b E £ = = _ ’;____ S iy - : " )
3 —? ) = TR | o
o NEW FLOOR +3.28
FLAT 05 FLAT 04 FLAT 04
BIKE STORAGE = -
I — — = - : = — —_— "',
— e . —=
— N = = 4 E=———— < +0.83
B +
% o e o e 5 e i - / 5% 7 5 / = 0 _83
7 / / — — +0.00
S / S :
/ 74 /s / . / 7
. .' / g .
] /. e /./' 7 ; ~ ’ Vs
/ 7 2/ W7 o ANCILLARY GYM FOR RESIDENT USE S
b e Al / H L v v
o y / s s S pe
/ F / o (.'. e P Py
7 / J/" ¥ o 7 S / ’
P 7 A S /’ P —2.6}/
; )_.-' # ,"' / = P /, v F
A S AL % Z 77 G # T : 7 A 7 7 ',f/ g V4 7
2 S Ve 4 e A A g 7 A o s T i . 9 £ T R T T T hisafr/{iwi tsGGﬁﬂQ !
7 77 P s T T S ST T pi P aiehs
g ¥ /, I . / 7 I/"/ / S Y g S Vs P S s '/‘_'. A ‘/ S #y g ' s S & s P > .-/ Pl i 5:/ i

Job

Drawing No Revision

Drawing

The Busworks
United house
North Road
N7 9DP
LONDON

TOWN HALL STAINES
Market Square

TW18 4RH - Staines
England

Date

2710472017

THS/PL/300

Dm Chk

CD | BK

PROPOSED SECTION AA

Om 1m 2m
et

PAPER SIZE: A3

SCALE 1:100




NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

Z¢ obed

7
/ i A T R
NO ACCESS -
'{ ’ UNABLETO e
/e SURVEY
257 2 g % 77 i Jé
,,,,,, R 7 B R i 7 % SR % Z 7 % 7
7
NO ACCESS ?j
4 UNABLE TO FLAT 13 /;/
! SURVEY 4 - |
o =l - oo 41105
10.84 Ceiling - - . 7 / ' . . : v . \ +313
+3 8¢ \L : : & ' e 7 - S ,..-
. — = — gt = :C
[ g
7 ! I 7 FLATO6
: A — . : o UPPER LEVEL
FLAT 08 FLATDS % f,' S F?.ATO! e £ 'm”?- = 7 _ === +7.92
UPPER LEVEL WPER LEVEL " A | el ey 7 UPPER LEV‘EL. . = _‘-__ I +3 23
— = -5 = =] — = —_ — =
+6.95 — .‘_'_ T S Full high window == Ful high windaw S
+2.84 \ 7 = NEWFIOOR | =
/ FLAT 07 FLAT 08
? L v = LOWER LEVEL
FLAT 09 FLAT 08 i AR~ IR =5 .
LGER e TeL LOWER LEVEL LOWER LEVEL B 7 — = —— B Sy +4 78
) 5 =] —— SHple— —— 2 e —— +3.80
+4 11— -, — w~ .4 f— . S =/ —— — <
+3.28 NEW FLOOR o
FLAT 03 FLAT O3 FLAT 03 FLAT 02 FLAT 0
- - R e I = . - i ——
+0.83 - < = = ko = - T — N 1 |
+0.83 = . o = [l = ‘ -
+0.00 —- o /
-0.69 — — — ] |
- o |I
s | ANCILLARY GYM FOR RESIDENT USE
S I, == —NEwwmDows | GLAZER DODRS
{ FIRE BT
A
s
_/a" o
/ A 74 4 o 74 7 A / / e/
..'-/ f/ /J i 4 3 ¥ /'/ o /7 : v / 7 / /ﬁ‘ L f'?.:-dt .ah\-il'(l r"-". /
P ¥ 4 e 4 ok il oA , v /,,_ / // ok _// R scak . é
/ " /- / - / 7 2/ /oy ; /
Vs Il s A 5 / s / // , / fh's_ 9@"“""‘9 ﬁWQm‘ ,/
s === - o N ) USL Architects
Job No Job Drawing Drawing No. Revision
% The Busworks -
: United house 16/THS TOWN HALL STAINES PROPOSED SECTION BB THS/PL/301
om 1m 2m 3m  4m 5m 6m  7m 8m 9m 10m
: ﬂ North Road = Market Square = T =3 , . ; . ; - ,
Y DO TW18 4RH - Staines CD | BK PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100
. LONDON 27/0412017 England




+11.056 — ~

ALL CEILING ROSES

A i A A T
e

R

+3 1 3 TO BE VISIBLE ALL CEILING ARCHES - M
AND REFURBISHED TO BE VISIBLE |
AND REFURBISHED II
o ; I
Q i — el B P e ——— — o EATIR ¢ ‘ HFH'M'L
(D . : %ﬁm — ~I o UPPERLEVEL
w S REEURIER R bl = Dl'c)UBLE HI(;}:%N I,
W 792 - - | == O e
4393 R iz SHISTING SiAs 1 ——— +6.95
L B ) - SEE CONNECTION - NEW FLOOR - NEWFLOOR [ seecomvecion  +2.84
—— = — — = — ] SLAB AND WINDOW DETAIL BETWEEN
FLAT 11 SLAB AND WINDOW
FLAT 07 LOWER LEVEL
LOWER LEVEL
__ FLATOS ) = . FLATIZ _
LOWERLEVEL = o COWERLEVEC
+4.76 —1 | = L: — L_— - o
1y .- .” . 4 . — ) — —_—
+3 80 7 NEW FLOOR +3.28
FLAT 02 FLAT 05
o roIa | BIKE STORAGE.
= REFURBISHED B ———— -
n r b A A BB _ +0.83
+0.96 N }L: 1_ *{{'1[ 1[‘1[ ’(i_-'iL -i]...-l!__ T +0 83
+0.96 e . 7 7 +0Q 00
+0.00 — S A p . /- A ol ~ 7y .
= i o S A A d ANCILLARY GYM FOR RESIDENT USE ONLY T
s /o . / 7 / 4 ~ / P ’ v /
o i ’ o iy L / / 2 S A S 74 _ - 75
VA 7 g S S S 7 4 _/'/ v ( b J / i S / / ' // / s P ey e S s 4 “ S i / /’.J' /s
2k s S v S / v S ’ / Y Ve, / V. . & e 3 7 'y y, / p 7 s 7,
P S A S S 3 P / /! / S 7, / / 4 ’/ / s Y / / / “ / 7 L bt el SAA S / V4 S /s S
5 g s ., ; A A s ; 7 C e 7 " / / : S s I . P & A S I
A 'J/: / ol A A / i .__/. / A A o . ; // SECTl‘_ON DD P y s 2 r < / o ’ Thls ﬂ;ﬂWlﬂg is copyﬂght ’
SECTION CC USL Architects.
Job No. Job Drawing Drawing No Revision
’ The Busworks TOWN HALL STAINES
1} United house 16/THS PROPOSED SECTIONS CC AND | THS/PL/302 om 1
m 2m 3m 4m 5m 6m 7m 8m 9m 10m
B North Road Date Market Square DD Dm Chk o— L i 1 i t | | | i §
L Nl TW18 4RH - Staines PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100
e T LONDON |  27/04/2017 England CD | BK ' '

u

CEILING ROSES.

I
Y e
7 ’

NO ACCESS

INABLE TO
SURVEY

G

NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

_... 110.84 Ceiling

+3 89




v abed

NOTES

Drawings for planning purposes only
and not for construction.

Drawing based on the survey made
by AMU Surveys Ltd

-'.'r.g.' ';
‘ 7 <
g 2 ¥ ]
NO ACCESS £
; TO 2 v
e i .
7 7 - —_, - +10.84 Ceiling
T - ” / +389
;1:?; 4 0 BE REFLURBAS! ~
) 0/ 7 =
2 i
ﬁ"ﬁ Rt .
'/,,f i Allo HEFUNBISHED ¢ UP:;’;TLE%EL /:
7 ) AP Z
7 5 W :
?': ) i— NEWWINDOW | WEWWINDOW — 7 3;"
. = ——| ———— = — o
o " S
o FULL HIGH +2 84
TO SHOW CELING
B
b = | S
FIRE EXIT
FLAT D2 FLAT 09
LOWER LEVEL LOWER LEVEL
—— / s
; . = '
i — .
;./é L9 e - ':./ - +4 11
/ 55 NEW FLOOR 7 *2:28
o ﬁ - - — 4
Laridlord storagg FLAT 03
i | ; B = o 4083
g 7 7 ) +0.83
7
s +0.00
iy . ANCILLARY GYM FOR RESIDENT USE ONLY 7 77
77T | 7 5
Vs /- P _ /5 " A
7 A g - 264
oSS T i 7 T _ %7 i
S - - = - = o Z Y 2 2 A 7 7 i r’_.- g //,
4 /4 4 74 /4 / S S I
Iy, 7 s / p F . . . v /
/. 4 / //. " ’/, /// /" ’ /.f 7 / ] g / P : Ef /) / . 7
This drawing is copyright
SECTION EE USL Architects.
» The Busworks Job No. Job Drawing Drawing No Revision
I United house 16/THS TOWN HALL STAINES PROPOSED SECTION EE THS/PL/303 of A @R 3m  4m  Sm  6m  7m. 8m_ 8m  10n
un North Road — Market Square T T iy : A ! . . . !
| RICDE TW18 4RH - Staines CD | BK PAPER SIZE: A3 SCALE 1:100
1 LONDON 27/04/12017 England




Gg abed

CURVED CEILING

VISIBLE AND NON

ACCESSIBLE EXISTING TIB
|

e

CORNICE TO BE RETAINED AND
REFURBISHED

GLAZED WALL:
CBILING’S CONTINUITY OF
VIEW AND PROPORTION

b7

i
[ 7
l/’
'

)R PARTIALLY GLAZED:
ONNECTION WITH

EXISTING WINDOW

ROSTED GLAZED OR SIMILAR FOR PRIVACY

CLEAR GLAZED ON A SMALL P.

DOUBLE HIGH:
VIEW ANDPROPORTION OF THE
EXISITNG MAINTAINED | |
h\- LS
-
/
Vi
4

N The Busworks Job No. Job Draw@ Drawing No. Revision
United house 16/ THS TOWN HALL STAINES 3D TYPICAL FLAT LAYOUT INTO THS/PL/900
L North Road = Market Square EXISTING - —
+ N7 9DP TW18 4RH - Staines
QR TTES N LONDON 19/01/2017 England CD BK




This page is intentionally left blank



Shepperton House

<
g
~
~oL

7\

~“~SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

c
o
ju
[}
Q
Q
[}
<
2]

[ Page 37/



Planning Committee

7 February 2018

e

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Application No.

17/01634/FUL

Site Address

42 High Street, Shepperton,

Proposal Change of use from offices/bank to a mixed use of commercial units at
ground floor level and to 3 no. residential flats above on first floor with
balconies, erection of new second floor with 3 no. flats with balconies,
erection of part single storey, part two storey rear extension and new
windows and doors including new access to front.

Applicant Thames House Property — Mrs Lina Shakiry

Ward Shepperton Town

Call in details

Called in by ClIr Barnard due to concerns over loss of
privacy/overlooking; noise and odour from potential commercial uses;
lack of parking; no disabled access to upper floors; no fire escape.

Case Officer Matthew Clapham
Application Dates Target: Extension of
Valid: 01.11.2017 Expiry: 27.12.2017 time agreed until
16.02.2018.
Executive The application site is located on the eastern side of the High Street and
Summary is currently occupied by a detached two storey building with car parking

to the area accessed via an access drive to the northern side of the site.
It was previously used as a bank, however has been vacant for
approximately 2 years. It is located within the Shepperton Town Centre
Shopping and Employment Areas.

There have been two previous proposals for alterations and extensions
to this site, both of which were refused. The first scheme was for 9
residential units, the second 7 units, both with commercial on the ground
floor. These schemes were refused on the grounds of design,
overdevelopment and loss of privacy to adjoining dwellings.

The proposal under consideration seeks to retain commercial uses at
ground floor level, extend the first floor to the rear and add a new
second storey to create 6 flats over the first and second storeys. The
proposal includes balconies to the side and rear to provide amenity
space with screening to the rear balconies. 10 parking spaces would be
provided, utilising the existing access onto the High Street.

No objections have been raised by the County Council Highway
Authority nor Environmental Health (Pollution Control). The alterations to
the design, bulk and mass of the building and screening to balconies are
considered to have mitigate previous concerns regarding

Page 38




overdevelopment of the site and potential overlooking. Satisfactory
parking provision is provided and separation distances comply with
guidance contained in the Councils Supplementary Planning Document
for the Design of Residential Extensions.

Rec_or_nmended This application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions.
Decision

MAIN REPORT

1 DEVELOPMENT PLAN

1.1 The following policies in the Council’'s Core Strategy and Policies DPD

2009 are considered relevant to this proposal:

» EN1 - Design of New Development

» HO1 - Providing for New Housing Development
» HO4 - Housing Size and Type
» HOS5 - Density of Housing Development
» CC3 - Parking Provision
» TC3 — Development in Shepperton Town Centre
» EM1 — Employment Development
2 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
21 17/00115/FUL
Change of use from offices/bank to a mixed use of commercial units at ground
floor level and to 4 no. residential flats above on first floor with balconies,
erection of a new second floor with 3 no. flats with balconies, erection of ground
floor rear extension and new windows and doors including new access to front.
Refused
02.03.2017
16/00704/FUL
Change of use from offices/bank to a mixed use of commercial units at ground
floor level and 9 residential flats above, including new second floor with 4 no.
balconies, erection of ground floor rear extension and new windows and doors.
Application Refused
11.07.2016
3 DESCRIPTION OF CURRENT PROPOSAL
3.1 The application site is located on the eastern side of the High Street and is

currently occupied by a detached two storey building with car parking to the
rear via an access drive to the northern side of the site. It was previously used
as a bank however has been vacant for approximately 2 years. It is located
within the Shepperton Town Centre Shopping and Employment Areas.

Page 39




3.2 The proposal under consideration seeks to retain commercial uses at ground
floor level, extend the first floor to the rear and add a new second storey to
create 6 flats over the first and second storeys. The development comprises 4
no. 1 bedroom flats and 2 no. 2 bedroom flats The proposal retains the existing
facade of the building at ground and first floor levels, with an additional
entrance door being added to the front of the building to allow access to the
flats above. The building will be extended at first floor level to the rear, with a
new second storey being added in a ‘mansard’ style of design, including dormer
window features. Balconies are also included to the side and rear to provide
amenity space. 10 parking spaces would be provided, utilising the existing
access onto the High Street.

4 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 The following table shows those bodies consulted and their response

Consultee Comment
County Highway Authority No objections subject to conditions.
The Council’s Head of Verbally confirmed no objections.
Streetscene
Environmental Health - No objections subject to conditions.
Pollution Control Officer
(Contaminated Land)

5 PUBLIC CONSULTATION

18 neighbour notification letters were sent, with 12 responses to date. 11 of
these letters objected on the following grounds:

- impact on character of the area

- traffic generation

- loss or privacy and overlooking

- visual intrusion

- potential noise and disturbance were commercial units to be in A3 use
- non-compliance with the Human Rights Act

- failure to address previous reasons for refusal

- general over development of the site

1 letter of support was received stating that redevelopment of the site should
occur as soon as possible as the building has been vacant for some time.

A letter was also received from SCAN regarding the lack of disabled access to
the upper floors.

6 PLANNING ISSUES

- Principle of Development

Page 40



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

- Design, Appearance and Visual Impact
- Residential Amenity

- Housing Size/Type/Density

- Parking / Transportation

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The previous application (17/00115/FUL) was refused on the following grounds:

The proposed development by virtue of its design, bulk and mass is not
considered to pay sufficient regard to the character and appearance of the
existing building and as such, would be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the street scene and the visual amenity of the area.

Furthermore, the proposed first and second floor balconies on the rear
elevation are considered to cause an unacceptable loss of amenity to
neighbouring properties through overlooking / loss of privacy. As such, it is
contrary to Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD (2009) and
Guidance contained in the Supplementary Planning Document for the Design of
Residential Extensions and New Residential Development (2011).

This application is to be assessed on whether this reason for refusal has been
overcome by the submitted proposals.

Principle of Development

The principle of converting and extending the upper levels to residential use
has not been resisted in the previous applications. Furthermore, the proposal
would retain a commercial use at ground floor level and therefore would also
allow continued employment opportunities on the site in compliance with
Policies TC3 and EM1 of the Spelthorne Core Strategy and Policies DPD
(2009). The existing first floor area was used as ancillary accommodation for
the bank. In view of the retention of the commercial use; the sustainable town
centre location and the site being a brownfield developed site, there is no
objection in principle to the development for partly residential purposes.

When considering planning applications for housing, local planning authorities
should have regard to the government’s requirement that they significantly
boost the supply of housing and meet the need for housing in their area so far
as is consistent with policies set out in the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) para 47.

Relevant policies for the supply of housing cannot be considered up-to-date if
the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable site (para 49 of NPPF).

The Council has embarked on a review of its Local Plan and accepts that the
housing target in its Core Strategy and Policies DPD-Feb 2009 of 166 dwellings
per annum is significantly short of its latest objectively assessed need of 552-
757 dwellings per annum (Para 10.42 — Strategic Housing Market Assessment

Page 41



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

— Runnymede and Spelthorne — Nov 2015). In September 2017, the
government produced a consultation paper on planning for the right homes in
the right places. The proposals included a standard method for calculating local
authorities’ housing need and proposed a figure of 590 per annum for
Spelthorne. On the basis of its objectively assessed housing need the Council
is unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable sites.

However, the objectively assessed need figure does not represent a target as it
is based on unconstrained need. Through the Local Plan review the Borough'’s
housing supply will be assessed in light of the Borough’s constraints which will
be used to consider options for meeting need. Once completed, the Borough'’s
up to date Strategic Land Availability Assessment will identify further
opportunity sites for future housing development that can then be considered
for allocation in the new Local Plan. This will also form the basis for a revised 5-
year housing land supply figure.

Para 14 of the NPPF stresses the presumption in favour of sustainable
development and that proposals which accord with a development plan should
be approved without delay. When the development plan is absent, silent or
relevant policies are out of date, permission should be granted unless ‘any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against policies in the Framework taken as a whole or
specific polices in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.’
This application must be considered having regard to the above requirements
of Para 14 of the NPPF and given its sustainable location is considered to be
acceptable in principle.

Design, Appearance and Visual Impact

Policy EN1 of the Spelthorne Core Strategy and Policies DPD (CS&P DPD)
seeks to attain high standards of design and layout of new development. The
building is not listed or locally listed, although the existing building has a
distinctive design and is situated in a prominent location within Shepperton
Town Centre. The character of the front elevation will be largely retained and
modified including a new mansard style roof and a new front door to access the
flats. The proposed building would be three stories high, with a new second
storey flat roof element replacing the existing pitched roof. The design retains a
mansard style of roof comparable to that previously refused. However, this is
set back from all elevations and alterations to the fenestration have improved
its visual appearance and provided greater symmetry to the existing building
below.

The extended parts of the building would be visible from the sides and rear,
however only limited views of the second storey would be available when
viewed from the immediate street scene to the front. Careful consideration has
been given as to whether the proposal has overcome the previously expressed
design concerns and on balance, particularly after taking into account the
Council’s lack of a five year housing supply and the need to provide a ‘planning
balance’ it is considered the design is acceptable and would not appear out of
character within the street scene.

Page 42



7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

Residential Amenity

The proposed extensions would result in the building being closer to the rear
boundary of those properties in Broadlands Avenue. The extensions to the rear
at first floor level do comply with the 10.5m separation distance set out in the
SPD to the rear boundary, as do the balcony areas. In addition, the extension
to the roof results in a three storey development which has a separation
distance of 16m which is meets that required by the SPD (15m). Furthermore,
the amended scheme now has the balconies 15m away from the rear
boundary, in compliance with the SPD. Privacy screens have also been
provided to the balconies, and when seated on the balcony, views to the rear
would be minimised. It is also noted that there is an extensive tree screen along
the rear boundary to the properties backing onto the site in Broadlands Avenue
and that the gardens are long, with in excess of 30m between the proposals
and the rear of the dwellings in Broadlands Avenue. No concerns are raised
from the balconies to the side as they would overlook commercial / community
properties. The balconies are also relatively small in size, negating the
likelihood of any significant noise and disturbance from the use of these
balconies. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal has overcome the
previous concerns, complies with Policy EN1 of the CS&P DPD and guidance
contained in the Design SPD and would not result in an unacceptable loss of
privacy, overbearing appearance or noise and disturbance to adjoining
properties.

Due to the separation distances and relationship with adjoining properties, no
loss of light is considered to arise.

For the future occupiers of the property, there is a significant shortfall in the
required amenity space as set out in the Design SPD. However, this is the
conversion of an existing building within the town centre and balcony areas are
provided. In addition, there are two public parks/recreation grounds within close
walking distance. The site is in a sustainable location and is considered
satisfactory to meet the amenity needs of the future occupiers of the flats.
Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable on amenity grounds,
particularly as the site is providing additional residential; accommodation within
a sustainable town centre location, in compliance with paragraph 14 of the
NPPF.

The proposal seeks to provide 4 no. 1 bedroom flats and 2 no. 2 bedroom flats.
The flats have floor areas that meet the requirements set out in the minimum
floorspace for new dwellings as set out in the Technical Housing Standards -
nationally described space standard, and the Council’s own Design SPD.

The concerns regarding the commercial uses are noted. However the building
is in @ commercial use within a town centre location. Any air conditioning units
or extraction equipment would require planning permission and any noise and
disturbance issues from any potential A3 use would be managed by
Environmental Health and Licensing legislation.

Housing size, type and density

Policy HO1 seeks to deliver housing development within the borough, and to
encourage housing development on all suitable sites for that purpose taking

Page 43



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

into account other policy objectives. The proposed development is considered
to comply with these policy objectives. There is no policy objection to the
addition of residential units on this site.

Policy HO4 seeks to ensure that the size and type of housing reflects the needs
of the community by requiring development of four or more units to provide at
least 80% of their total as one or two bedroom units. The proposed scheme
here would provide 100% 1 and 2 bed units and so complies with policy HO4.

Policy HO5 seeks to ensure that new housing development makes effective
use of land this policy sets out density guidelines, to ensure that new
development respects the density of the surrounding areas, and to direct higher
density developments towards town centre locations. This proposal has a gross
density of 60 dwellings per hectare (dph). In view of the town centre location,
this is considered acceptable.

Parking / Transportation

The Council’s adopted Parking Standards SPG sets out the Council’s minimum
parking standards for new development. The proposal would provide a total of
10 off street parking spaces in the existing parking area to the rear of the
building including a disabled space, which will be made available only to the
residential units. A total of 8 spaces are required for the six flats

The County Highway Authority was consulted on the proposal and raised no
objections, stating the scheme would have no material impact on the safety and
operation of the adjoining public highway.

No parking is proposed for the proposed commercial units. The CHA considers
that any customer/ staff parking would be safely accommodated within the local
highway parking bays and there are parking restrictions in the vicinity of the
site. In addition it is considered that the site is in a sustainable location on
Shepperton High Street where there is good access to public transport and
viable alternatives to private car trips. Therefore the proposal is considered
acceptable on transportation grounds. The proposal would also provide secure,
covered bicycle parking spaces, which is considered acceptable.

Other matters

The Comments from SCAN are noted. In addition, Policy HO4 requires
developments to encourage inclusion within housing schemes to meet the
needs of people with disabilities. However, this proposal is the conversion of an
existing building, which is a sustainable form of development, restricted by its
existing structure. The proposal does include a disabled toilet and parking
space at ground floor level. It is considered that the benefits of the proposal by
providing housing on this site are significant and disability access would be
covered by Building Regulations.

Local Finance Considerations

Under S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, Local Planning Authorities
are now required to ensure that potential financial benefits of certain
development proposals are made public when a Local Planning Authority is

Page 44



considering whether or not to grant planning permission for planning
applications which are being determined by the Council’'s Planning
Committee. A financial benefit must be recorded regardless of whether it is
material to the Local Planning Authority’s decision on a planning application,
but planning officers are required to indicate their opinion as to whether the
benefit is material to the application or not.

7.23 In consideration of S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, the proposal
is a CIL chargeable development rate of £160 per sq metre of new floorspace.
This is a material consideration in the determination of this planning
application. The proposal will also generate a New Homes Bonus and Council
Tax payments which are not material considerations in the determination of
this proposal.

Conclusion

7.24 The proposed development is considered acceptable and provides additional
residential units within a sustainable town centre location. The design and scale
of the building, whilst being larger than the existing building would have an
acceptable impact on the streetscene and the adjoining properties. The scheme
would provide satisfactory parking and access arrangements and would not
result in any adverse impacts upon the residential amenity of neighbouring
properties in terms of any loss of light, privacy or overbearing.

8 RECOMMENDATION

The application is recommended for APPROVAL subiject to the following
conditions:

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:-.This condition is required by Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act, 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Before any work on the development hereby permitted is first commenced
details of the materials and detailing to be used for the external surfaces of
the building(s) and surface material for parking areas be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:-. To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the
appearance of the development and the visual amenities and character of the
locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne Borough
Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

3. Prior to the commencement of development a survey report detailing ground
conditions of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the

Page 45



Local Planning Authority. Where made ground or contamination is
encountered a scheme to investigate, assess and remediate contamination
risks shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, and shall be
carried out in accordance with the agreed details and timetable.

Reason: To protect the amenities of future residents and the environment
from the effects of potentially harmful substances. .

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted the balcony
sreens on the rear and flank elevations at first and second storey level shall
be obscure glazed in accordance with details/samples of the type of glazing
pattern to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. These windows shall thereafter be permanently retained as
installed.

Reason:- To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining properties, in accordance
with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and
Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the
positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected.
The boundary treatment shall be completed before the building is occupied.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and
maintained as approved.

Reason:-. To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the
enjoyment by neighbouring occupiers of their properties and the appearance
of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne
Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

No development shall take place until full details of both soft and hard
landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The
trees and shrubs shall be planted on the site within a period of 12 months
from the date on which development hereby permitted is first commenced, or
such longer period as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority, and
that the planting so provided shall be maintained as approved for a period of 5
years, such maintenance to include the replacement in the current or next
planting season whichever is the sooner, of any trees or shrubs that may die,
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, with others of similar
size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written permission
to any variation.

Reason:-. To minimise the loss of visual amenity occasioned by the
development and to enhance the proposed development. In accordance with
policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies
Development Plan Document 2009.

That the parking and turning, loading, and unloading space shown on the

submitted plan be constructed within three months of the commencement of
any part of the development permitted, or such longer period as may be

Page 46



10.

approved by the Local Planning Authority, and thereafter the approved
facilities together with the means of access thereto shall be maintained as
approved, and be reserved for the benefit of the development hereby
permitted.

Reason:-. To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the
free flow of traffic or the conditions of general safety along the neighbouring
highway(s) and to ensure that the facilities provided are reserved for the
benefit of the development for which they are specifically required, in
accordance with policy CC3 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and
Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

That within 3 months of the commencement of any part of the development
submitted, or such longer period as may be approved by the Local Planning
Authority, facilities shall be provided within the curtilage of the site for the
storage of refuse and waste materials in accordance with the details hereby
approved, and thereafter shall be maintained as approved.

Reason:-. To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the
enjoyment by neighbouring occupiers of their properties and the appearance
of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne
Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

That no further openings of any kind be formed in the rear elevation of the
development hereby permitted without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason:-. To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residential properties, in
accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core
Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: SITE LOCATION PLAN; 441-12E; 441-14D; 441-
15D; 441-1; 441-2; 441-3; 441-11; 441-6; 441-7; 441-17; 441-18D; 441-19;
441-16E; 441-9G; 441-10G received 23.10.2017 and 441-13E; 441-8H
received 12.12.2017.

Reason:-. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT

. Notwithstanding any permission granted under the Planning Acts, no signs,

devices or other apparatus may be erected within the limits of the highway
without the express approval of the Highway Authority. It is not the policy of
the Highway Authority to approve the erection of signs or other devices of a
non-statutory nature within the limits of the highway.

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct
the public highway by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding or any other device

Page 47



or apparatus for which a licence must be sought from the Highway Authority
Local Highways Service.

The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned
wheels or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever
possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing
highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways Act 1980
Sections 131, 148, 149).

All buildings or apparatus (with the exception of projecting signs) which
project over or span the highway, including balconies, may be erected only
with the formal approval of the Transportation Development Planning Division
of Surrey County Council under Section 177 or 178 of the Highways Act 1980.

. The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015

Working in a positive/proactive manner

In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a
positive and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of paragraphs
186-187 of the NPPF. This included the following:-

Provided or made available pre application advice to seek to resolve problems
before the application was submitted and to foster the delivery of sustainable
development.

. Historically land across Spelthorne has been subjected to extensive mineral
extraction, with subsequent infilling of the resultant voids. Excavations during
some development works have encountered fill materials where records have
not previously identified a history of extraction / infilling.

To confirm ground conditions at the application site minimum requirements of
the survey are as follows:

1 The excavation of 2 -3 trial holes to a depth of 1.00mbgl. This can be done
by hand or with a small digger

1 At least one location beneath the footprint of the proposed dwelling and
another one to two holes within the proposed rear garden and other
associated landscaped areas.

] an inspection to be made of the ground conditions and confirm the absence
or otherwise or any made ground / fill materials at this property, their
thickness and extent.

"1 Photographs shall be taken of each exploratory position including all
associated soil arisings (soils excavated and placed to the side of the hole as
works progress).

1 Where different soil horizons are encountered (i.e. topsoil to 0.40mbgl|
overlying a layer of sandy gravel to 0.60mbgl with stiff clay to the base of the
excavation (c.1.00mbgl)) appropriate written logs will be required to detail the
depths, thickness and description of the materials encountered.

] a scale plan (such as the site layout plan) indicating the location of the
exploratory positions in relation to the proposed property and a photograph
taken across the site detailing the soils and arisings.

Page 48



1 The information, logs and photographs can be submitted to us in a simple
letter report.

1 If made ground materials are encountered during the excavations soill
sampling and assessment of contamination risks will be required to be
undertaken by a suitably qualified person.

Made ground refers to non natural / notable fill materials — fragments of brick,
concrete, metal, plastic, timber, glass, ashy materials. Evidence of
contamination is identified by either visual (staining of soil or sheens on
groundwater (if encountered)) or olfactory means (organic, tarry, hydrocarbon
/ petrochemical odours). In the event that materials of this nature are
discovered during the survey, you are advised to contact us for further
guidance.

You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be
taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking:

(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out
between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays;

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on
site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are necessary,
they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels;

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above;
(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance beyond
the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to damp down
stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust, to damp
down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and wheel washes;
(e) There should be no burning on site;

(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated
above; and

(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway and
contractors' vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause an
obstruction or block visibility on the highway.

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained from
the Council's Environmental Health Services Unit. In order to meet these
requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the Council recommends
that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme -
www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration.

The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an acceptable
communication plan for surrounding properties forming part of a Method of
Construction Statement are viewed as:

(a) how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are identified and how
they will be informed about the project, site activities and programme;

(b) how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive work or of any
significant changes to site activity that may affect them;

(c) the arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable telephone
response during working hours;

Page 49



(d) the name and contact details of the site manager who will be able to deal
with complaints; and

(e) how those who are interested in or affected will be routinely advised
regarding the progress of the work. Registration and operation of the site to
the standards set by the Considerate Constructors Scheme
(http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help fulfil these requirements.

Page 50



-~
it

o e o Ml

PAPYING

e o e e e e

e

=)
5
g
8
10 | :
_ q
_ UNITS A
AND B
i 1. R 3
m_ T T e S AR S A
9 il
_

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR

SCALE: A1 1:50-A1 1:100

0 1 2
—

ENTRANCT T
RISIGENTIAL UHITS

PRUPCSEL
GROUND Fh sk A
CETENSRON *

—_—e \

AR AL N

REM T

CLIENT: THAMES HOUSE PROPERTIES LTD s SRl 2 TTEABT | P BN T, ATl BT O P R i oMol
PERCEPTIONS MR AND MRS SHAKIRY . |2 i £ w1 RN AL R AR s 4 8 s
ARCHITECTURAL . it el

JOB: g - SHEPPE ‘ i O il
AND DESIGN SERVICES 42 HIGH STREET - SHEPPERTON bsensions

NN T
felephonc
] e AL b vt W L 0 e WL LA AR A AT
+44({0)208201 9818 DRAWING: PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR oy e
ALL WORK IS TO BE CARRIED OUT TO 1 1E RECUIREMENTS, AND! #0188 SAIAACHON OH
Facsimile — - L SoMERs FAR R LEO 1) SR Fub S Ao 5 ot £ty iy 0 it P e g P 1ME LOCAL AUIHORIIY
+44(0)2084580578 o SIAIUS | SSULD G DAl OISCREPANCIES
ESERS o AN 201/ FOMKIN S WU PO veid

Page 51

g%%alﬂ‘l 10 P ATIENIICH

£ e AMCICTAMDWIRY




; i 00|
i FF joof mn .\.I‘._
” H Ha\ [ ——
| [ L4
| . 2
! FLAT RUOF 1
| ! (= L/D/K AREA \L BEDKROOM Qm»ﬂ)nxg
\] 33 M2 U 16M2 2042
1 s
==
] \ ) / 1 0
i i o I 4y : Do
" i g J Il = ﬁW__.h 24 TL na |8 LE_WW, .
i o a L g | N I o e e g s
[ weZ S
_ 222 R f y _
| 4 5937 ’ %
1 i o533 | )
_ | L - |
V H ] sraion
| _ 14.5M2 |
i | : [Er
: ! L | = "
i m - vl
i | k1
i i AAKDE A
| | | S T ~ m JA s HALWAY 2o 4 HALLWAY. L
| | © FLAT2 ﬂ.
i | 1 | 284P
& 1 7 81 M2 _\
| H : z
1 : - BEDROOM
| m_ FLAT1 N 12 M2
| fomm s e ———— - 3 ! 4 24P
" | E BEDROOM g 79 M2 =
! _ H 12 M2 N
. ] 3
i &
i (<)
__ { | W =
[FTh e | ! Z|
[] =
[ L )
°l L/D/K AREA
I = 30.5 M2
I | TR _
i U ow) Fr| BU
‘ | PROPCLLD TIRS| HOGK LXIUNGIM
i i
! |
I sl = = VEHK  ALCEZS
SCALE A11:50-A31100
BE T T
CLIEN] THAMES HOUSE FROPERTIES L1D D O e O e T =
PERCEPTIONS MR AND MRS SHAKIRY N —— Tl CrT T S T R T e S R
ARCHITECTURAL . . = ¢ UM a4 WO
- JOB: 42 H STREET - SHEPPERTON ;
AND DFSIGN SERVICES ile : R R TIr
PYRE R 2t
tolepmong W el N L TLT DES = 270
[ F % B TN | IR A 4
«£4[0)208201 PE18 DRAWING ~ PROPOSED FIRSI FLOOR A ALLWORK (5 TO BE CARRIED OUT TO TILE REQUIREMENTS AND TO 18 $a188#a GICa: G#f
ronsmle — — — : = B e | G Ay v e R 2 e i (b | a0 5950 N i ALl e WA S0 i A €T PN “__MnMM:m__H,om_:
ST U DATE STAILS LD RE BAR 21 L AN
< 23(0) 20E4EANSTE " SR ™ ! : .
dlye AN J k] Parepe. Rt ADOH S FLGEND O UL D el D el ivtgg_ﬂ—siaiﬁg
. 109 ok AHOWCT raddt TS

Page 52




ALCARLE GLASH
| GLAss
i
Y \ 1 i I8
I 1 1 T H
! R e e ———— e g~ -4 i1 i
i o = .n“&pr
- ‘“ et~ pacws HIEHIE M = e pm Py L s — - b
| e _ 3 ¥ Rl I
- ! s
| 1 1
i i \
| | L/D/¥. AREA L=l H 1/DIX ARER
| 20M2 11a2 77 2
i = ! f
51 | 1
H ! - (=t -
I — = g
| ™
i | A
1
nA =
i —— - — <= . A A
¢ P ——— —_— | L N EEEED i3 FLAT&
i i ] 1B2P
I V i 1A 56.6 M2 |
= aren - = =4 = iy g SARCASE
d_ 1 1} - 3 ‘W &
; i LN ARy ",_u.ﬂ._- d HALWAY
| it i et e g ﬂ
| = = - e —————— = A lalsfadsdotyigh
i y p— T W7 . s ¥
I : 77 = .
4 i [ COMMUNAL CORRIGOR 8
f I - ." i
i “ 3 A a—— — L
I t i = ! L . M
| 1 H )
_ N | v o
- § { — i - )
| ' L= e e ¥ H o e S
- - iy ) LR AREA BEDROOM [ BLLROGM
: 277 M2 13 M2 | 16142
' =
i s
i = ——— — S
R . o ) _ S
' b e ——Tpeas e T Ty e ~1-
(X} -A h i
; == 4 1 Hi v
S R S 1
WALKABLE GLASS
OBSCURE GLASS
_é_
i i | I
I
L} ]
| i
SRS L = P ALCTSS

: . REY
CLIENI IHAMLES HOUSE PROPERIILS LTD S| it s | TP INTT e b AF B 26 T T AT S IR SR e A
BERCEPTIONS MK AND MRS SHAKIRY el
ARCHIECTURAL . . . -
JOB: SHS _SHEPPE . “
AND DESIGN SERVICES AZHIGH STREET - SHEPPERION N P oEnsions
eph " o HWORC Tk
talephony el TIN5 T30} QN Wt PRI e
4401208201 9818 DRAWING; PROPOSED SECOND fLOOR D20 SISO TS VNS IR PN SRR AT S R RA AT
ALL WORK L5 TO BE CARRIED OUT TQ TIIE REQUIREMENTS AND TO THE SAISFACTION %)
4 v BTN i 1T REDEL N YD TS BALE Gos @A I N il DWEn s Al QN Dk R, IreinCAL auliceils
144(0) 2084580578 A, TR CalL
o T DR | AR e A0 POGRICR] OO BTV LE AIOAL L HAREID AN SO ANCTIE) "D B MROUGHT 10 T ATTENNC
O IHE ARCHIMET MR

Page 53




NLW SECOMD 1 LOGR - MANSARLD KOO
DORMERS

WINUOW

NE

WINLOW

NEW LRSI FLOOCK - MDA

WINLOW

1l

R HEW GROUND FLOOR NLW GROUND | NEW GROUND [LOUR NEW GROUND | LOUR fa
O DOOR WINDOW LOOK
HEW GROUND FLOOR
WINCOW
@ PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
e
. - - KEVISION B ey
— " CLIENT: THAMES HOUSE PROPERTIES LTD | REV [ ——p =55 T = -
r PERCEPTIONS MR AND MRS SHAKIRY A o T | GENERAL FLYSIONS s = PR
ks JOB: 42 HIGH STREET - SHEPPERTON ' o or e SO FEN
- : c 1710 2016 CEHERAL BRVGIONS AS DBCUSSED Wil 1 PLANING GHICE?
(L3 B - '
. . V6 512017 NUMBER GF FLATS PEUCEL SMALL UNITS INGREASEL I SIZE STENDARL  SEPAK
telephone . SIS ANC.ES 6 IWEEN IHE ELILDING AN JOILING, KESIDENCE KEVISED 16 COMPL Y W
+42(0)208201 9818 DRAWING: PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION COUNCIL POLICIES BULK AN MATS OF T1HE BUILDING KEDHSI “
; AO—uﬁ_OZ _I>V 16 10 2017 ALLWORK IS TO BE CARRIED QUT TO THE REQUIREMENTS, AND TO TIIE SATISFACTION OF
Facsimilc . = iz LOCAL AUTHORIIY
+44{0)2084580578 o a0 ssupio] s oscREPANGIES
i ERERCN LRIVACY SCREEH Wil QBSCURED GI ASS ADIED 10 KEAK HIEVANION AT DCAMACRS 10 LISCHGH 10 THE ATTENTON




28GC
23C0

1650

PROPOISED SECOND FIOOR  MANSARD ROOT
Wi

ai,

PROPOSED [RST TIOUR FXTENSION

w
gy
032
g0
G
=i
Fa
FE
b

08SCURE
GLASS
1028

OBSCURF
GLASS

3RICK
WAL
890

GLASS

e

IRICK  GBSCURE

WALL

890

Hal) NEW GROUND FLOOR NEW GROUN™ FIOOR NEW GROUND FIOOR
DOCR DOOR DOCR
PROPOSED
GROUND LOOR
EXTENSION
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
P~
0 1 2
— = e — S
CLIENT: THAMES HOUSE PROPERTIES LTD  REY REVISION
NO DATE SUBJEC]
PERCEPTIONS MR AND MRS SHAKIRY ) 27 04 7016 GENERAL REVISIONS
ARCHITECTURAL : : i £vis
>zm DESIGN SERVICES JOB: 42 HIGH STREET - SHEPPERTON gy T
c 14 012017 NUMBFR OF FLATS REDUIC FNY SMAT INCREASFD IN SI7E
STANDARD SEPARATION DISTANCTS INGS AND JOINING
RESIDENCE ZFVISFD 1O COM e
felephone BULK AND MASS OF T RUILOING RFDFSICGN
+44{0)208201 9818 DRAWING: PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION 1616201/ ROOT € HANGEN 1 MANSARD RGO WITH DORMI RS 141 BIDUCH) 10 81X TIATS
Facsimile BALCONIES REDU'CED IN SIZ i Amm SPELIIORNE
SCAIE COUNCI POLICIFS N T REVIS
+44(0}2084580578 AR DATE STATUS SSUFDTO  DATF
AZTI0C AN 2017 0712 207 PRIVACY SCREFN WITH OSSCURE GLASS ANDFD 1O FIFST ANE SECOND FLOOR REAR
e ) e et

corv

QR TLIC SALE I SNIONE ST

BEFTN

ALL WORK 5 TO BE CARRIED OUT TO THE REQUIREMENTS AND TO THE SATISFACTION OF
THE LOCAL AUTHORITY

DISCREPANCIES

A DOCHIPAMCIES T BE SROUCA TD 1M ATTCNSG
OF I ARCHIETCT IAMETRAIFLY




SR

g S

NEW SEC OND TIOOR - MANSARD ROOF
WOT DORMERS

EE PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION B

Somr 1)

PERCEPTIONS
ARCHITECTURAL
AND DESIGN SERVICES

telephone
444(0)208201 9818

Focsimile
+44(0)2084580578

NEW FIRST FI OOR BALCONY

NFW HIRSTFLOOR
WINDOW

FROPOSED FIRST [10Q
BALC O

R EXTENSION WITN

CLIENT: THAMES HOUSE PROPERTIES LTD  REV

MR AND MRS SHAKIRY
JOB: 42 HIGH STREET - SHEPPERTON

DRAWING: PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION B

SCALE DATE Al
.
4w

IAN 201

NG DATE
27 04 016
Done e

1o 1M

e i o7

SUBJECT

GENERAI REVISIONS

(DENFRAL REVISION

BAANSART ROOT w
IN SIZH 16 CORM

17/01634

ALL WORK 15 TO BE CARRIED OUT TO THE REQUIREMENTS. AND TO THE SATISFACTION OF
THE LOCAL AUTHORITY

DISCREPANCIES

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION



21 GOR - MANSARD k(!

HEW P RST EOOP RALCONY i

TAALL

SaRAP

T
T i

. PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION A

Scabe: 1:100

PERCEFPTIONS
ARCHITECTURAL
AND DESIGN SERVICES

telephone
08201 9818

Foc simile
+4A{QI2084580578

S

NEW GROUND FLOOR

nHOOR
WINDOW R

GROU
EXIENSION

CLENT THAMES HOUSE PROPERTIES LTD  REV
MR AND MRS SHAKIRY
JOB 42 HIGH STREET - SHEPPERTON
DRAWING. FROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION A o
e e (T e T TR TN S T
do

REVISION
NO DATE SUBJECT
77 CHVERAL FIVISIONS
SR L FAAEEAL &V
L AME LA MR 14 AYE
i, AR Y " LTS * o 1

[ ¥ L b

e

ALL WORK 15 TO BE CARRIED OUT TO THE REQUIREMENTS AND TO THE SATISFACTION OF
THE LOCAL AUTHORITY

DISCREPANCIES

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION



This page is intentionally left blank



Scale 1:1,250

[N S s

Survey 100024284.

o —

L

,x_Page 59

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance



Planning Committee:

7 February 2018

s

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Application No.

17/01700/HOU

Site Address

27 St Hilda’s Avenue, Ashford

Proposal Erection of a part single/ part two storey rear extension and wrap-around
pitched roof over side and rear single storey element.

Applicant Mr & Mrs P Sanders

Ward Ashford Town

Call in details

This application has been called in by Councillor Gething due to
concerns of over-development and over-bearing impact on neighbouring
properties.

Case Officer

Drishti Patel

Application Dates

Target: Under

Valid: 06/11/2017 14.02.18

Expiry: 01/01/2018

Executive
Summary

This application seeks approval for the erection of a part single storey,
part two storey rear extension. It also involves the installation of a pitch
roof to the side of the property and the creation of a covered seating
area. The application was deferred by the Planning Committee at its
meeting on 10 February to enable further information to be provided to
assess the impact on the neighbouring property.

The proposal is considered to have a satisfactory relationship to
adjoining properties and has sufficient regard to the character of the
area. lItis considered to meet the requirements of Policy EN1 of the
Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 and the Supplementary Planning
Document on the Design of Residential Extension and New Residential
Development 2011.

Recommended
Decision

This application is recommended for approval.

Page 60




1.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Main Report

Development Plan

The following policies in the Council’s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009
are considered relevant to this proposal:

- EN1 (Design of New Development)
- LO1 (Flooding)

Also relevant is the Supplementary Planning Document on the Design of
Residential Extension and New Residential Development 2011.

Relevant Planning History

PLAN Erection of a single-storey side Grant Conditional
C/FUL/75/183 extension to provide a utility room 21.04.1975
measuring 72 sq. ft. (6.7 sq. m).

PLAN Erection of a single-storey rear Grant Conditional
C/OUT/75/194 extension measuring 189 sq. ft. (17.6  21.04.1975
sq. m).

Description of Current Proposal

The application site is located on the western side of St Hilda’s Avenue in
Ashford. The site is occupied by a two storey semi-detached residential
dwelling. The plot is rectangular with an integrated garage protruding out to
the left from the front elevation. The application site is located within the
1:1000 year flood zone.

To the north of the site is the adjoining property of the pair of semi-detached
dwellings, 25 St Hilda’s Avenue. Other pairs of semi-detached dwellings are
situated to the south of No 27 with the closest being 29 St Hilda's Avenue.
The area is characterised by pairs of semi-detached dwellings. It is noted that
the properties vary slightly in terms of design but mostly uniform in scale and
are all two storey.

The proposal involves the erection of a part single storey, part two storey, rear
extension. Also it is proposed to install a pitched roof over the proposed single
storey rear element and existing side extension.

The ground floor element would measure 3 metres in depth, and would be set
in from the northern boundary by 0.2 metres. The first floor element would be
staggered in depth with the shallower element situated on the northern side
measuring 2 metres in depth. The deeper element, situated in the southern
side would measure 3 metres in depth. Due to the staggered nature of the first

Page 61



3.5

3.6

3.7

41

5.1

7.1

floor, the roof lines of both north and south elements will have a different
maximum height of 7.55 and 6.6 metres respectively. The roofs for the first
floor will have a gable-end design.

There is an existing side extension that wraps around to form a front
extension. This serves a garage and currently has a dummy pitched roof at
the front element and extends 3 metres in width from the southern elevation.
Behind the dummy pitched roof, the side extension has a flat roof. It is
proposed to convert this into a pitched roof design and extend it as a
wraparound to the proposed single storey rear element.

There are other small external alterations such as changes in the fenestration
at the rear of the side extension. Here there are changes to the position of the
door and windows. There will be no windows in the either side elevations.

A copy of the existing and proposed floor plans and elevations is attached as
an Appendix.

Consultations

None

Third Party Representations

6 letters were sent out to neighbouring properties to notify of the application.
3 letters of objection was received from 25 St Hilda’s Avenue raising the
following points.

- Precedent (no other two storey rear extensions in the area)

- Overbearing and overshadowing

- Loss of daylight and sunlight

- Permitted Development Rights say 2 storey structures should be 2 metres
from party boundary

- Previous report had error stating 25 St Hilda's Avenue had north facing
gardens (which has been corrected)

- 45 vertical degree line has been breached

- Concern over applicant’s sunlight assessment plan

Issues

- Character of the area (Design and Appearance)
- Impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties
- Impact on flooding

Planning Considerations

Impact on the character of the area

It is recognised that the application property is situated within a line of pairs of
semi-detached houses of a similar design with little variation. Due to the

existing side extension, the rear of the site is not readily visible from the street
scene. As such, the only proposed alterations that will be visible from the front

Page 62



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

will be a pitched roof on the existing side extension which would improve the
appearance from the street scene. Consequently the proposal is considered to
have no adverse impact on the street scene of St Hilda’s Avenue and will not
be out of character with the area.

Although the proposal involves a two storey rear extension to a semi-detached
dwelling, it is set in from the southern boundary. The proposal will have a two
pitched roofs lower in height than that of the main dwelling so will appear
subservient from the rear. As such it is considered to be in proportion and in
character with the host building.

The proposed design and appearance of the proposal is considered
acceptable and would not harm the overall character of this part of St Hilda’s
Avenue, conforming to Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD
2009 (CS & P DPD).

Impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents

Policy EN1 of the CS & P DPD states that new development should achieve a
satisfactory relationship with adjoining properties avoiding significant harmful
impact in terms of loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, or overbearing effect
due to bulk and proximity or outlook.

The two storey rear element is not set in from the northern boundary with the
adjoining property 25 St Hilda's Avenue, and will protrude 2 metres from the
rear elevation. However, it does not cross the 45 degree horizontal line when
drawn from the centre of the existing conservatory of No. 25 adjacent to the
boundary as per the Councils Supplementary Planning Document on the
Design of Residential Extensions and New Residential Development 2011
(SPD) on the design of extensions.

The 45 vertical degree line set out in the SPD is taken from the rear of the
conservatory of the adjoining property at no. 25 St Hilda’s Avenue, not the
garden or patio area. A conservatory is classed as "Development” under
Section 55 of the Town and Country planning Act 1990 in that it is a building
operation. Therefore the conservatory is classed as a building and is subject
to the same planning rules as other types of house extensions; it is not a
garden or patio area and the 45 vertical assessment should be taken from the
rear of the existing conservatory not the rear of the original dwelling. The
Council’s SPD is based on the guidance of the British Research
Establishment (BRE) “Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight”. When
considering the impact on the daylight to nearby buildings, paragraph 2.2.2
states that the "guidelines given here are intended for use for rooms in
adjoining dwellings where daylight is required, including living rooms, kitchens
and bedrooms. Windows to bathrooms, toilet, storerooms, circulation area
and garages need not be analysed.” There is no single legal definition of
“habitable room”, as its use and meaning is subject to context. A reasonable
approach was taken that a conservatory is a room where daylight is required
and is not in the same category as toilets and garages. There will be some
loss of light to this conservatory due its transparent roof materials and also

Page 63



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

that it is situated north of the proposal. However it is considered that the
amount of light lost during a day would not be significant enough to justify
refusal.

The proposed two storey element in relation to this property also does not
breach both 45 degree lines with regards to the neighbouring property, 29 St
Hilda’s Avenue as the extension will be set in 2.6 metres from the southern
boundary. The two storey element would be staggered due to it protruding 3
metres along the southern boundary, 1 metre further than the northern side.
As such it is considered that the two storey proposal will have an acceptable
relationship with both adjacent dwellings and will not give rise to a significant
loss of light or overbearing impact on these adjacent properties.

The SPD refers to a 1m set in for two storey extensions (3.14 ¢ and 3.42 b ii)
but these relate to the set in from the side boundary not for a two storey rear
extension as currently proposed.

There is a ground floor element which extends beyond the proposed two
storey element on the northern boundary by a further 1 metre making the total
ground floor depth 3 metres. This is considered to be acceptable because it is
single storey and it does not project beyond the conservatory at No 25. The
proposed pitch style roof for the existing side extension would wraparound to
the proposed single storey rear extension with a height of 2.5 metres to the
eaves and sloping up to a maximum height of 3.3 metres. This height is not
considered to adversely impact on No 29.

The proposal would also comply with the separation distances set out in the
Councils SPD. With regards to properties at the rear of the site, it would
measure 19 metres from the rear of the proposal to the western boundary.
Furthermore, it would measure 39 metres from the rear of the proposal to the
rear elevations of No 32 and 34 Wellington Road. It is considered to cause no
adverse impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties.

There are no proposed side facing windows, and a condition is proposed to
prevent any new openings.

The neighbours at 25 St Hilda’s Avenue have written in objecting to the
proposal. Their main reasons for objecting are concerns that the second floor
element will block out daylight and sunlight to their property and that it will
appear overbearing due to the 45 vertical degree line being breached. No 25
has a west facing rear garden with an existing conservatory with a depth of
approximately 3.4 metres. While their concerns are noted, as indicated above,
the proposal meets the requirements of the SPD in terms of distance and
height and does not break the vertical or horizontal 45 degree lines and it is
not considered that refusal can be justified on these grounds. Another concern
was the impact on the character of the area which has been addressed above.
The objector also refers to permitted development rights concerning 2 storey
structures being situated 2 metres from the party boundary but this is not
relevant as a planning application has been submitted and therefore does not
need to adhere to permitted development regulations A further concern

Page 64



7.13

7.14

7.15

8.1

relates to the applicants sunlight assessment plan. However the proposal has
been assessed under Spelthorne’s own policy EN1 and SPD.

It is therefore considered that the impact on the amenity of the neighbouring
properties in terms of privacy, daylight, sunlight and bulk will be acceptable.

Impact on flooding

The application site is located within the 1 in 1000 year flood event area where
there is no objection in principle to extensions on flooding grounds. It is
considered that the proposal will not have an adverse impact upon the flood
area provided that it adheres to the conditions recommended by the
Environment Agency in their standing advice which are recommended to be
attached to this proposal. The application will then be in accordance with
Policy LO1 of the CS & P DPD.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval.

Recommendation

GRANT, subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration
of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: - This condition is required by Section 91 of the Town and
Planning Act, 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The extension hereby permitted must be carried out in facing materials to
match those of the existing building in colour and texture.

Reason: - To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in accordance
with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and
Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans and drawings: L2506/LP rev A; 01; 02;
03; 05 rev A and 08 received 03.11.2017.

Reason: - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper
planning.

4. That no openings of any kind be formed in the northern and southern
elevations of the part single storey/part two storey rear extension hereby
permitted without the prior written consent of the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 65



Reason: - To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residential
properties in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne
Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 20009.

5. There shall be no raising of existing ground levels on the site within the
area liable to flood, other than in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: - To prevent the increased risk of flooding due to impedance of
flood flows and reduction in flood storage capacity in accordance with
policies SP1, SP7 and LO1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and
Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

6. All spoil and building materials stored on site before and during
construction shall be removed from the area of land liable to flood upon
completion.

Reason: - To prevent the increased risk of flooding due to impedance of
flood flows and reduction of flood storage capacity in accordance with
policies SP1, SP7 and LO1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and
Policies Development Plan Document 2009.

INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT

1. In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a
positive and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of
paragraphs 186-187 of the NPFF. This included the following: -

Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the process to
advise progress, timescales or recommendation

Page 66



/9 abed

=030, |
E%\ ﬁ'? E.,”M
H=5247 r
L B

—— —— =

=200 HH=g041 UH=2023
NH=1016 OH=t0z0 W=2305
GH=1824 GH=1921
¥=1p14 W=12ih
Rooe Hedpght
H=-2483

foon Helght
H=238

1
ity bty |
1 P
1 F it 1
1 1 1
1 ’ 5 1
- H
[ L
AT St
Ty Wl Sh=1;
it 0

HH=g 0% 2062

Ohk=13¥ER50

GH=7 4R

¥-43%

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Lt
*,
At
.Y
"
L
.
s
5,
s
e
.
HH=P 864 £
OH=152%5
SH=7 33 r |
W=h04
= 7
1
ftH=E 04§ H
IH=1331 1
SH=778 ]

OH=t MY
T-I{g\ ¥-152H :|:

HH=i2gn %

e .

OH=t324 Lo |
/ i

1

i

SH=gS |
beciz :;|
i

ﬂt'_!lfﬁ
78
IH=13710
J S s !
Scom Height
H=g508

;i
HH=132 8 HH=2035
IH=1323 UH=1336
SH=URENDEN SH=Ta7
W=1235 W=152H

FARST FLOOR PLAN

MTE
@ 208 [T

REOBERT DAVIES JOHN WEST LIMITED Wico & 4

RIBA Charterad Practice

THWN S HE
The Courtyardt 5% Charch Strest a

PROFOSED DEVELOPMENT,
27 9T HLDAS AVENUE

EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

Stednes upon Thames Mdde TWiB 455
Tl 04784 455211 E-eedl: dnfordjsdtd.con

© T 12900/01 7 -




g9 abed

mmmm

I

atllllng., o

il

HIIIIIIIIHIHIIIIIHM

==

| ||
| e |

e
- -
e e

[

| o |

HTE
3

@ 20416017
TME
1123

ROBERT DAVIES JGHI"- WEST LIMITED |

RIBA Charersd Practice e 7 DD
[0

The Courtyard 58 Church 5Trest

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT,
27 9T HLDASD AVENUE

" ASHFORD

EXIOTING ELEVATIONS

StEinss upon Thanes Middx ThIE 465
Ted: 01784 455211 E-medl: infoBrdjslid.con

~ L2%06/02 "




69 abed

@ aenonr  PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT,
T 5T HLDAS AVENUE.
ROBERT MEEE,aS:h:rEirimEH LIMITED lmo:3 EVISTING AND PROPOSED

The Courtyard 58 Chuareh 5trest ?Om F BI—DCH- PLHN

Stadnss wpon Thanes Middx TWiE 463

Tel: 04704 455211 E-nedl: irfoBrdielod.con @ - L2506)’ 03 b




0/ abed

Q0
O

_ﬁ
ule
%[ﬁ
SIS,
el

~!
1 CHEHEY BREAST

BEpROOM 3 | [ REMOVED
1
L.

SUBECT TO &F.

oo
o0

T I ! | |
..... ' H| Lo

|

|

ROOF PLAN |

K

EOBERT DAVIES JOHN WEST LIMITED
RIBA Charerad Practice
Thee Courtyerd 53 Church Strest
Stadnss upon Thames Midds TWiE 4XS
Tel: 01704 435211 E-medli irfofrdjslid.con

CHTE

P PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT,
=r— 27 61 HLDAS AVENUE
"t " ASHFORD

FROPOSED FLOOR FPLANS

R/ [HD
[0

®© T L2%006/05" »




T/ obed

Ll WH’ I mmﬂ g P AN
M Of (

] ||||||||||H||H||||th=\ (T |

= —

'

@ monr  PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT,
27 ST HLDAS AVENUE

ASHFORD

The Courtyerd 53 Church Sereet FROFOSED ELEVATIONS

ROBERT DAVIES JOHN WEST LIMITED 1150 & 43

IBA Chanersd Practics T
pa

EStadnss upon Thanes Midds Twib 4d% el W

=
Tel: D704 £58211 E-medl: irfordjelid.con L2506’J’06




2/ obed

Geolocated Sun path Diagrams at 27 5t Hilda's Avenue

@jllila;iﬁnln AN ML Mo | EAEePW

21 March at 3pm

2 ] -
J-l-i!thJA.uulltr WATA B AR

21¥ March at 4pm

r e— |
if"hlll’ﬂﬂ-ﬂﬂ-ﬂ O Fme mae|

21 March at 5pm

21%* March at 6pm



¢/ obed

Vertical 45 degree line from rear of

conservatory, is not encroached
upon by proposed extension \




@ sonons  PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT,

, — N 27 5T HLDAS AVENUE,
ROBERT DMHE;&CMJH?@HEIIEH;DI;&T LIMITED ;:T;mm ASHFORD, MIDDX.

The Courtyard 53 Church Strest e LOCAT|ON PL’AN

Staines upon Thames Mddx TWEE xS

Tel: 01784 455911 E-mail: infoRrdiwltcleon - L2506/ LP - A

Page 74



\ N
S NN Ageridg\ﬁ&ﬁ\é}e

“SPELTHORNE "

M MEANS BUSINESS >{\ Mast

ED & Ward Bdy

[T~

b 18/00061/DEM — The White House. N
// m Scale 1:1,250 A 4
/ © Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100024284.

yd / Page/75 | R W\



Planning Committee *

7 February 2018 SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Application No.

18/00061/DEM

Site Address

White House, Kingston Road, Ashford. TW15 5SE

Applicant Spelthorne Borough Council

Proposal Prior approval for the method of demolition of the White House building
and restoration of the site.

Ward Staines South

Called-in The application is being referred to the Planning Committee to note as

Spelthorne Borough Council is the applicant.

Application Dates

Valid: 15.01.2018 Expiry: 08.02.2018 Target: Within 28 days

Executive
Summary

The site is located adjacent to the White House Council Depot on the
Kingston Road in Ashford and comprises a two storey house of white
painted rendered with a two and half storey extension to the north east.

The property is included within the Local List of Buildings and Structures
of Architectural or Historic Interest 2014, but is not Listed or located
within a Conservation Area and has no statutory protection.

The proposal is to demolish the building and remove the resultant
materials from the site.

Under Schedule 2, Part 11, Class B of the General Permitted
Development Order (GPDO), any building operation consisting of the
demolition of a building is permitted development providing certain
criteria are met. However, a determination is required to be sought as to
whether the prior approval of the authority is required as to the method
of demolition and any proposed restoration of the site.

The demolition of the White House is permitted development under
Schedule 2, Part 11, Class B of the General Permitted Development
Order and the conditions for prior approval have been met.

Recommended
Decision

Planning Committee note that Prior Notification will be Approved.

Page 76




11

1.2

1.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

MAIN REPORT

Development Plan

Since this application seeks to determine whether the prior approval of the
Council would be required for the demolition of the building and restoration of
the site, the policies in the Council’'s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009
are not relevant to the consideration of this proposal.

The building is included within the Local List of Buildings and Structures of
Architectural or Historic Interest 2014 (Updated 2016). However, inclusion in
the local list does not confer any statutory protection for a building.

The application is being referred to the Planning Committee to note as
Spelthorne Borough Council is the applicant.

Relevant Planning History

99/00341/DE3 Redevelopment of site for a Council Approved
Depot including new workshop, office 28.07.1999
building and parking (part details
pursuant to outline approval PA/98/0613).

98/00613/0OUT Redevelopment of site for a Council Approved
Depot including erection of a workshop, 14.12.1998

storage building, ancillary
accommodation and parking (Outline).

Description of Current Proposal

The application site comprises 0.62 acres (0.25 ha) at the junction of Kingston
Road and Ashford Road, south west of the White House Depot.

The building dates from the early nineteenth century and comprises a two
storey house of white painted render under a hipped roof, with a later two and
half storey extension to the north east.

The proposal is to demolish the building and remove the resultant materials
from the site, leaving the site clear.

Consultations

The following table shows those bodies consulted and their response.

Consultee Comment

County Highway Authority No objection

Page 77



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

1.4

7.5

7.6

Environmental Health No objection

Public Consultation

A site notice was posted at the site on 12 January 2018. One response was
received making the following comment:

e Another lovely building to be demolished, eventually to be ugly flats
housing too many people for the area.

Planning Issues

This application seeks a determination as to whether the prior approval of the
Council would be required for the demolition of the White House and
restoration of the site.

Planning Considerations

Under Schedule 2, Part 11, Class B of the General Permitted Development
Order (GPDO), any building operation consisting of the demolition of a
building is permitted development providing certain criteria is met. However,
a determination is required to be sought as to whether the prior approval of
the authority is required as to the method of demolition and any proposed
restoration of the site.

The building is not in a conservation area and is not a statutory listed building,
neither is it a community asset used for Class A4 (drinking establishment)
purposes. Therefore the demolition of the building cannot be objected to in
principle.

It should be noted that the building is included within the Local List of
Buildings and Structures of Architectural or Historic Interest 2014 (Updated
2016) and policy EN5 of the Local Plan encourages the retention of locally
listed buildings and seeks to ensure that their character and setting is
preserved in development proposals. However, there is no statutory
protection to locally listed buildings and there are no planning controls which
can prevent their demolition.

The application has been submitted with a method statement outlining clear
and safe instructions for the demolition and removal of the White House and a
statutory notice advertising the proposal has been posted on site.

The method statement includes measures to control dust and other emissions
to the air, together with mitigation measures to reduce exposure to site
operatives, the public and surrounding property through prevention,
suppression and containment.

In addition, the method statement provides measures to minimise noise
impact, including hours of work and demolition working practices.

Page 78



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

8.1

A painted, 2.7 metre high hoarding would be erected at the front of the site,
adjacent to the access road, in accordance with National Federation of
Demolition Contractors guidance on temporary work hoardings.

All hardcore resulting from the demolition would be crushed and all waste
material would be taken from the site to an approved recycling centre.

Vehicles would access the site via Ashford Road and all vehicles and plant
would be parked within the site boundary.

The County Highway Authority and the Environmental Health Officer have
raised no objection to the proposed method of demolition and restoration of
the site. It is considered that prior approval should be granted for the
proposed demolition and restoration of the site.

Recommendation
In accordance with Class B, Part 11, Schedule 2 of the General Permitted
Development Order 2015, as amended, it is recommended that Planning

Committee note that prior approval for the demolition of the building will be
APPROVED.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee

7 February 2018

i e

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Title Development Management Performance

1.1  Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) are measured on their performance
based on the % of planning applications they determine within 8 or 13
weeks (or within an extension of time agreed with the applicant). For
several years the targets have been as follows:
Majors — 60% within 13 weeks
Minors — 65% within 8 weeks
Others — 80% within 8 weeks
Major development is defined as:
More than 10 residential units, dwellings on a site with an area of 0.5
hectares or more, 1,000 sg. m or more of new commercial floorspace
or sites with an area of more than 1 hectare.
Minor development is defined as:
Up to 9 residential units, up to 999 sqg. m of new floorspace, changes of
use
Others — mainly householder schemes

1.2  Inthe year ending December 2017, Spelthorne met all three
performance measures as follows:

Table 1

Majors Minors Others
Total On % on | Total On % on Total On % on
Target | Target Target | Target Target Target
(i.e. (i.e. (i.e. 80%)
60%) 65%)
23 19 83% 202 155 7% 627 550 88%
1.3 The assessment period for the last quarter, October to December 2017

is set out in the following table.

Page 81




Table 2

Majors Minors Others
Total On % on Total On % on Total On % on
Target | Target Target Target Target Target
(i.e. (i.e. (i.e. 80%)
60%) 65%)
4 3 75% 63 48 76% 137 123 90%
1.4 In November 2016, the Government announced changes to the way

LPAs are assessed in terms of planning performance and are now
being measured on:

e The speed of determining applications for major development

e The guality of decisions made by the authority on applications for
major development;

e The speed of determining applications for non-major
development;

e The quality of decisions made by the authority on applications for

non-major development.

1.5 With just a few minor exceptions, non-major equates to a combination
of the “minor” and “other” categories referred to above.
1.6  The following table provides an overview of the thresholds and
assessment period for 2017 and 2018 and Spelthorne’s performance.
Table 3
Measure 2017 Spelthorne’s | 2018 Spelthorne’s
and type of | Threshold Performance | Threshold Performance
Application | and and
assessment assessment
period period
Speed of 50% 94% 60% 85%
major (October (October
Development | 2014 to 2015to
September September
2016) 2017)
Quality of N/A quality | N/A 10% (April 4.2%
major is not being 2015 to
Development | assessed in March 2017)
this

Page 82




designation
round

Speed of non- | 65% 74% 70% 82%
major (October (October
Development | 2014 to 2015to

September September

2016) 2017)
Quality of N/A quality | N/A 10% (April 1.7%
non-major is not being 2015 to
Development | assessed in March 2017)

this

designation

round

1.7 It can be seen that Spelthorne has met and exceeded all four targets

for the two threshold periods.

Page 83




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

PLANNING APPEALS

LIST OF APPEALS SUBMITTED BETWEEN 22 DECEMBER 2017 AND 25
JANUARY 2018

Planning |Inspectorate [Address Description Appeal Start
Applicatio |Ref. Date
n Number
17/00511/FUL| APP/Z3635/ | Land Adjoining |Erection of a single storey 17/01/2018
W/17/319025 |24 Ashgrove detached dwelling containing
8 Road 1 no. bedroom and
Ashford associated parking space.
17/01344/FUL| APP/Z3635/ |Workshop Erection of detached 17/01/2018
W/17/319082 |Adjacent To residential unit consisting of a
7 3 Avondale studio flat with associated
Road parking following demolition
Ashford of existing workshop.
16/02113/FUL| APP/Z3635/ |Halliford Redevelopment of the site to |22/01/2018
W/17/318195 |Studios Limited |provide 28 residential units, 1
5 Manygate Lane |x 1 bed flat, 7 x 2 bed flats, 6
Shepperton x 2 bedroom houses, 10 x 3
bedroom houses and 4 x 4
bedroom houses with a total
number of 50 car parking
spaces / garages, the
provision of amenity space,
landscaping and associated
alterations.
17/01321/FUL| APP/Z3635/ 217 Staines Erection of 2 bed detached |22/01/2018
W/17/318838 |Road West bungalow with associated
5 Sunbury On |parking and amenity space
Thames following demolition of
existing garage.
17/01201/FUL| APP/Z23635/ |93 Village Way |Erection of a 2-storey house |22/01/2018
W/17/318911 |Ashford with associated access,
0 parking and amenity space

following demolition of
existing annexe. Alterations
to existing house.

Page 85




17/00997/F |APP/23635/ |218 Stanwell Subdivision of existing 4 no. |22/01/2018
UL W/17/318746 |Road bedroom dwelling into 1 no. 1
8 Ashford bedroom dwelling and 1 no. 3
bedroom dwelling (including
removal of conservatory).
FUTURE HEARING / INQUIRY DATES
Council | Type Site Proposal Case | Date
Ref. of Offic
Appea ers
I
16/0032 | Public | Land rear of | The material change of use of the land | RJ 17-19
3/ENF/A | Inquiry | Gleneagles from agricultural land to a timber and April
Close, fencing builder's merchants/business 2018
Stanwell with associated storage of materials in
connection with that use.
17/0095 | Hearing | Land outside | TPOQ9/STA - T38 - Plane tree - Fell ST TBC
2/TPO Linley due to concerns about safety,
Riverside branches overhanging neighbouring
Road property and that the tree is out of
Staines- proportion with surroundings
upon-Thames

Page 86




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4a 17/01143/FUL - Staines Town Hall, Market Square, Staines-upon-Thames
	4c 17/01634/FUL - 42 High Street, Shepperton
	4d 17/01700/HOU - 27 St Hilda’s Avenue, Ashford
	4e 18/00061/DEM -  White House, Kingston Road, Ashford
	5 Planning Development Management Performance Statistics
	6 Planning Appeals Report

